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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20

Check the appropriate box:
[X] Preliminary Information Statement

[ ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter:

ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

MAKATI CITY, PHILIPPINES

SEC Identification Number: 62893

BIR Tax Identification Code: 004 710 062 000
Address of principal office:

ROCKWELL INFORMATION CENTER,

ROCKWELL CENTER, MAKATI CITY 1200

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 793 0888

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders:

Date : 3 August 2012
Time : 9:00 am
Place : The Rockwell Tent, Rockwell Center, Makati City, Metro Manila

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders:

13 July 2012



10.

11.

Securities registered pursuant to Section 8 and 12 of the Securities Regulation Code (SRC):
a. Authorized Capital Stock:
Php 9,000,000,000 divided into 8,890,000,000 Common Shares, each with a par value of
Php1.00 and 11,000,000,000 Preferred Shares, with a par value of Php 0.01
b. Number of Shares Outstanding as of 31 May 2012:

6,101,762,198 Common Shares with a par value of Php 1.00 per share
2,750,000,000 Preferred Shares with a par value of Php 0.01 per share

¢. Amount of Debt Outstanding as of 31 May 2012:

4,106,571,746.76 (Short-Term and Long-Term Debt)

Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange?
Yes [X] No[ ]

6,228,382,344 Common shares, including 126,620,146 Common Shares in treasury



ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

This information statement is dated July 13, 2012 and is being furnished to the stockholders of
record of Rockwell Land Corporation (“Rockwell Land” or the “Company”) as of June 14, 2012 in
connection with the Annual Stockholders Meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING FOR A PROXY
AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND A PROXY

A. General Information

Date, time and place of meeting of security holder:

Date : 3 August 2012
Time 9:00 am
Place : The Rockwell Tent, Rockwell Center, Makati City, Metro Manila

Record Date:

14 june 2012

Approximate date of which the Information Statement is first to be sent to security holders:

13 July 2012

Right of Appraisal

A stockholder has a right to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his share (i) in case
any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting the rights
of any stockholders or class of shares or of authorizing preferences over the outstanding share or
of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence; (ii) in case any sale, lease, mortgage or
disposition of all or substantially all the corporate property or assets; and (iii) in case of merger
or consolidation.

The appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who has voted against the proposed
corporate action, by making a written demand on the Company within 30 days after the date on
which the vote was taken for the payment of the fair market value of his shares.

There are no matters or proposed corporate actions which may give rise to a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under the Title X of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines.

Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be acted upon
(a) No director, officer, or nominee for election as director or associate of any of the

foregoing has any substantial interest in any matter to be acted upon, other than election
to office.



(b)

Control

No director has informed the Company that he intends to oppose any action to be taken
at the meeting.

and Compensation Information

Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a)

(b)

(©)

The Company has 6,101,762,198 Common Shares issued and outstanding as of 14 June
2012, The Company also has 2,750,000,000 voting Preferred Shares issued and
outstanding as of 14 june 2012. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for each
share of stock held as of the established record date.

All stockholders of record as of 14 June 2012 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the
Company’s Stockholders” Meeting.

Section 6 of the Company’s By-Laws provides that except as otherwise provided by law,
each stockholder of record shall be entitled at every meeting of stockholders to one vote
for each share of stock standing in his name on the stock books of the Company, which
vote may be given personally or by attorney or authorized in writing. The instrument
authorizing as attorney or proxy to act as such shall be exhibited to the Secretary if he
shall so request. In the election of directors, each stockholder entitled to vote may
cumulate and distribute his votes in accordance with the provisions of the Corporation
Law.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

(@) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management as of 31 May
2012.
Title of | Name and Address of Record Name of Citizenshi No. of Shares Held % of Total
Class Owner and Relationship with | Beneficial Owner p Outstandin
Issuer and Relationship g Shares
with Record
Owner
Common | First Philippine Holdings First Philippine Filipino 3,176,986,354 51.0%
Shares Corporation Holdings
4th Floor Benpres Bldg., Corporation is the
Exchange Road, Ortigas beneficial and
Center, Pasig City record owner of
Stockholder the shares
indicated
Common | Beacon Electric Asset Beacon Electric Filipino 1,437,382,190 23.1%
Shares Holdings, Inc. Assets Holdings,
10/F MGO Building, Legazpi | Inc. is the
corner dela Rosa Sts., Legazpi | beneficial and
Village, Makati City record owner of
Stockholder the shares
indicated
Common | San Miguel Corporation San Miguel Filipino 681,646,831 10.9%
Shares No. 40 San Miguel Avenue, Corporation is the
Mandaluyong City beneficial and
Stockholder record owner of
the shares
_indicated
Common | PCD Nominee Corporation PCD Nominee Filipino 186,089,180 3.0%
Shares 37/F Enterprise Tower I, Corporation is the
Ayala Ave., cor. Paseo de record owner but
Roxas, Makati City not the beneficial
Stockholder owner which are




owned

beneficially by
the investing
public
TOTAL OUTSTANDING 6,228,382,334 100.0%
COMMON SHARES
Preferred | First Philippine Holdings | First Philippine | Filipino 2,750,000,000 100.0%
Shares Corporation Holdings
4th  Floor Benpres Bldg., | Corporation is the
Exchange Road, Ortigas | beneficial and
Center, Pasig City, | record owner of
stockholder the shares
indicated
TOTAL OUTSTANDING 2,750,000,000 100.0%
PREFERRED SHARES

(b) Security Ownership of Certain Record of Directors and Management as of 11 May 2012,
Title of Name and Position Name of Citizenshi No. of Shares Held % of Total
Class Beneficial Owner p QOutstandin
and Nature g Shares
Relationship with
Record Owner
Common | Manuel M. Lopez Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Chairman the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Manuel M. Lopez Same record and | Filipino 2,245,552 NIL
Chairman beneficial owner |
Manuel M. Lopez and/or Same record and | Filipino 4,084,411 NIL
Maria Teresa L. Lopez beneficial owner
Common | Oscar M. Lopez Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Vice-Chairman the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Oscar M. Lopez Same record and | Filipino 119,376 NIL
Vice-Chairman beneficial owner
Oscar M. Lopez of Consuelo | Same record and | Filipino 55,521 NIL
R. Lopez beneficial owner
Common | Nestor J. Padilla Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Director and President the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Common | Miguel Emesto L. Lopez Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Director and Treasurer the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Common | Eugenio L. Lopez III Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Director the beneficial

owner First




Philippine

Holdings
Corporation
Common | Manuel L. Lopez, Jr. Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Director the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Common | Elpidio L. Ibafiez Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Director the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Common | Elpidio L. Ibafiez Same record and | Filipino 741 NIL
Shares Director beneficial owner
Common | Jose Guingona Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Director the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Common | Jose Guingona Same record and | Filipino 44,155 NIL
Shares Director beneficial owner
Common | Benjamin R. Lopez Held in trust for Filipino I NIL
Shares Director the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Common | Manuel N. Tordesillas Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Independent Director the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Common | Vicente R. Ayllon Held in trust for Filipino 1 NIL
Shares Independent Director the beneficial
owner First
Philippine
Holdings
Corporation
Common | Enrique I. Quiason Same record and | Filipino 3,575 NIL
Shares Corporate Secretary beneficial owner
Common | Rodolfo R. Waga, Jr. Same record and | Filipino 1,116 N.A
Shares Asst. Corporate Secretary beneficial owner
N.A. Valerie Jane Lopez-Soliven N.A. Filipino None N.A
Vice-President Sales and
Marketing
N.A. Maria Lourdes Lacson- N.A. Filipino None N.A.
Pineda
Vice-President Retail and
General Manager of the
Power Plant Mall N
Common | Estela Y. Dasmarifias Vice- Same record and | Filipino 1,882 NIL
Shares President Human Resources | beneficial owner
N.A. Ellen V. Almodiel N.A. Filipino None N.A.
Vice-President Finance .
N.A. Engr. Julius A. Marzofia N.A. Filipino None N.A.
Vice-President Project
Development
N.A. Ma. Victoria Ortega-Pollisco | N.A. Filipino None N.A.

Assistant Vice-President
Legal




N.A. Jose Patricio S. Masakayan N.A. Filipino None N.A.
Vice-President and General
Manager of Rockwell Club

N.A. Davy T. Tan N.A. | Filipino None N.A.
Assistant Vice-President
Business Development

Voting Trust

As of the date of this Prospectus, there are no persons holding more than 5% of the Common
Shares of the Company under a voting trust or similar agreement. The original shareholders of
Rockwell Land agreed that certain board resolutions of the Company shall be reached by
consensus and mutual consent.

Change in Control

The Company’s amended articles of incorporation or amended by-laws do not contain provisions
that would delay, defer or prevent a change in control of the Company. However, upon the
Dividend Distribution and Listing, FPHC is expected to remain the sole holder of the Preferred
Shares. Under the Company's amended articles of incorporation and amended by-laws, holders of
Preferred Shares are entitled to full voting rights. Further, Preferred shares can only be
transferred to (a) Philippine citizens and (b) to a corporation of which at least 60% of the total
outstanding equity capital is beneficially owned by Philippine citizens and which is not in
competition with Meralco, Benpres Holdings Corporation (now “Lopez Holdings Corporation”),
FPHC, or any of their affiliates. It is expected that upon completion of the Dividend Distribution
and Listing, the Preferred Shares will constitute 30.6% of the Company’s outstanding capital
stock. As of 31 May 2012, FPHC's combined ownership of the Company’s Preferred Shares and
Common Shares will be [52%] of the total outstanding voting capital stock.

Directors and Executive Officers as of 31 May 2012

The overall management and supervision of the Company is undertaken by the Board of
Directors. There are 11 members of the Board of Directors. The regular directors were elected
during the annual meeting of the stockholders held on May 31, 2011, to serve for a term of one
year and until their successors are elected and qualified. The composition of the Company’s Board
of Directors is as follows:

Manuel M. Lopez

Oscar M. Lopez

Nestor |. Padilla

Miguel Ernesto L. Lopez

Eugenio L. Lopez I1I

Manuel L. Lopez, Jr.

Elpidio L. Ibanez

Jose T. Guingona

Benjamin R. Lopez

Manuel N. Tordesillas (Independent Director)
Vicente R. Ayllon (Independent Director)

The Company’s key executive officers as of May 31, 2011 are as follows:

Nestor J. Padilla President
Miguel Ernesto L. Lopez Treasurer
Valerie Jane Lopez-Soliven Vice-President Sales and Marketing

Maria Lourdes Lacson-Pineda Vice-President Retail and




General Manager of the Power Plant Mall

Estela Y. Dasmarinas Vice-President Human Resources
Ellen V. Almodiel Vice-President Finance
Engr. Julius A. Marzona Vice-President Project Development
Ma. Victoria Ortega-Pollisco Assistant Vice-President
Jose Patricio S. Masakayan Vice-President and
General Manager of Rockwell Club
Davy T. Tan Assistant Vice-President Business Development
Enrique I. Quiason Corporate Secretary
Rodolfo R. Waga, Jr. Asst. Corporate Secretary

The following discussion presents a brief description of the business experience of each of the
Company’s Directors and key executive officers:

Manuel M. Lopez - 69, Filipino

Mr. Lopez has served as the Chairman of Rockwell Land since 1995. He is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Meralco. He has also served as a Director in Lopez Holdings
Corporation, Meralco, Bayan Telecommunications, Inc., ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation, and
Sky Cable Corporation, among others. He is currently the Philippine Ambassador to Japan. Mr.
Lopez holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from the University of the
East and attended the Program for Management Development at the Harvard Business School.

Oscar M. Lopez - 81, Filipino

Mr. Lopez has served as Vice-Chairman of Rockwell Land since 1995. He has also served as a
Director in Lopez, Inc, FPHC, Bayan Telecommunications, Inc., Sky Cable Corporation, and ABS-
CBN Broadcasting Corporation, among others. He is currently the Chairman Emeritus of First
Philippine Holdings. Mr. Lopez holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Harvard College and a
Master’s degree in Public Administration from Harvard University.

Nestor J. Padilla - 57, Filipino

Mr. Padilla has been a Director at Rockwell Land since 1997, and has been the President and Chief
Executive Officer since 1995. He is also serving as a Director of First Philippine Realty
Corporation and First Batangas Hotel Corporation. He has also served as a Director in FPHC and
Rockwell Club, among others, and he has served as a Trustee of the Rockwell Land Condominium
Corporation. During a stint in Indonesia, he held the position of Chief Executive Officer in Lippo
Land and was the Executive Director of Indo Ayala Leasing. Mr. Padilla holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Business Management from the Ateneo de Manila University.

Miguel Ernesto L. Lopez - 42, Filipino

Mr. Lopez has been a Director at Rockwell Land since 2009 and was also elected as Treasurer
since 2009. He has also served as a Director in Lopez, Inc, MESALA, Meralco Industrial
Engineering Services Corporation, CIS Bayad Center, Inc., and Outsourced Teleserve Corporation,
among others. He is currently the Vice President and Head of Corporate Affairs of Lopez Holdings
Corporation. Mr. Lopez holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Menlo
College of California, USA and attended the Executive Development Program of the Asian Institute
of Management.

Eugenio L. Lopez III - 59, Filipino

Mr. Lopez has been a Director at Rockwell Land since 1995. He has also served as a Director in
ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation, Sky Cable Corporation, Lopez Holdings Corporation, First
7



Gen Corporation, and FPHC, among others. Mr. Lopez holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political
Science from Bowdoin College and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the
Harvard Business School.

Manuel L. Lopez, Jr. - 44, Filipino

Mr. Lopez has been a Director at Rockwell Land since 2011. He has also served as a Director in
ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation, ABS-CBN Holdings Corporation, Sky Cable Corporation, and
Pilipino Cable Corporation, among others. Mr. Lopez holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Business Administration from De La Salle University.

Elpidio L. Ibafiez - 61, Filipino

Mr. Ibanez has been a Director at Rockwell Land since 1999. He has also served as a Director in
Energy Development Corporation, First Gen Renewables Inc, First Private Power Corporation,
First Gas Holdings Corporation, and First Batangas Hotel Corporation, among others. He is the
current President and Chief Operating Officer of First Philippine Holdings. Mr. Ibanez holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the Ateneo de Manila University and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from the University of the Philippines.

Jose T. Guingona - 77, Filipino

Mr. Guigona has been a Director at Rockwell Land since 2005. He has also served as a Director in
VENTAJA Corporation, Philippine Commercial Capital, Inc, PCCI Insurance Brokerage
Corporation, Bauang Private Power Company, and First Power Private Corporation, among
others. Mr. Guingona holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Journalism from Universidad Central
de Madrid.

Benjamin R. Lopez - 42, Filipino

Mr. Lopez has been a Director at Rockwell Land since 2001. He has also served as a Director in
First Philippine Electric Corporation, First Balfour, Inc.,, and various other subsidiaries of the
Lopez Group. He is presently serving as the Vice President for Corporate Communications of First
Philippine Holdings. Mr. Lopez holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in International Affairs from
George Washington University and an Executive Masters in Business Administration from the
Asian Institute of Management.

Vicente R. Ayllén - 80, Filipino

Mr. Ayllén was elected as an Independent Director of Rockwell Land in May of 2012. He has also
served as a Director in Insular General Insurance Co. Inc., The Insular Life Assurance Company,
Ltd., Asian Hospital, Inc,, UnionBank of the Philippines, and Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation,
among others. Mr. Ayllon holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce from the University of
the East.

Manuel N. Tordesillas - 58, Filipino

Mr. Tordesillas was elected as an Independent Director of Rockwell Land in May of 2012. He has
also served as a Director in ATR KimEng Financial Corporation, ATR KimEng Capital Partners,
Inc., AsianLife Financial Assurance Corporation, Tullett Prebon Philippines, Inc., and Sucat Land
Corporation, among others. Mr. Tordesillas holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial
Management Engineering from De La Salle University and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Harvard Business School.



Valerie Jane Lopez-Soliven - 43, Filipino

Ms. Soliven served the Company for 15 years and is currently Vice-President for Sales and
Marketing. Before joining Rockwell Land, she worked at the Manila Garden Suites, Edsa Shangri-
La Hotel and the Shangri-La Hotel in Singapore. Ms. Soliven, a licensed broker, holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Hotel and Restaurant Administration from the University of the Philippines. She
completed a Management Development Program from the Asian Institute of Management in 2006.

Maria Lourdes Lacson-Pineda - 42, Filipino

Ms. Pineda has been with the Company for 12 years and is currently Vice-President for Retail, and
General Manager of the Power Plant Mall and other retail developments of Rockwell. Prior to
joining Rockwell Land, she worked for four years at Jewelmer International, a French-Filipino
company specializing on exquisite jewellery. Ms. Pineda holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Hotel and Restaurant Management from the University of the Philippines. She completed a
Management Development Program from the Asian Institute of Management in 2006.

Estela Y. Dasmaririas - 51, Filipino

Ms. Dasmarinas is currently Vice- President for Human Resources of the Company and its
subsidiary. Prior to joining Rockwell Land, she was Vice-President for Human Resources of AMA-
DDB Needham Worldwide, Inc, a multinational advertising and communications organization.
She was also Director for Human Resources of property development firm Metro Asia Resources
Corporation and Manager for Human Resources of Mitsubishi Motor Corporation Philippines, Inc.
Ms. Dasmarinas holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Political Science and a Master of Arts degree
in Industrial Relations specializing in Human Resource from the University of the Philippines.

Ellen V. Almodiel - 38, Filipino

Ms. Almodiel has been Vice-President for Finance since 2010. She started as Finance Manager in
1994 and briefly served as Manager of the Business Development Team. Prior to joining Rockwell
Land, she was a Financial Analyst and later an Assistant to the Group Chief Finance Officer of the
Alcantara Group of Companies and Finance Manager of NextStage, Inc. Ms. Almodiel, a Certified
Public Accountant, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration and
Accountancy from the University of the Philippines, where she graduated cum laude.

Julius A. Marzoiia - 50, Filipino

Mr. Marzona has been with the company for six years and is currently Vice-President for Project
Development. From 1994 to 1996, he served as Project Management Officer for project
management consulting company SPCastro and Associates Sdn. Berhad and later became Project
Manager in the Philippines for the same company in 1997 until 2005. Mr. Marzona, a Licensed
Civil Engineer, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from the Central Philippine
University. He is a Certified Project Manager by the Construction Manpower Development
Foundation.

Ma. Victoria Ortega-Pollisco - 48, Filipino

Atty. Pollisco joined Rockwell Land as Assistant Vice-President for Legal Services in 2007. Before
joining Rockwell Land, she spent 13 years with the KUOK Group, as Corporate Secretary and Legal
Counsel of KPPI Land Corporation. She was also Corporate Secretary and Vice-President for Legal
of San Lorenzo Development Corporation. Atty. Pollisco, a member of the Integrated Bar of the
Philippines, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Legal Management and Bachelor of Laws degree
both from the Ateneo de Manila University. She is a licensed real estate broker since 1990 and is a
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holder of a Post Baccalaureate Diploma in Real Estate Management from De La Salle College of St.
Benilde.

Jose Patricio S. Masakayan - 52, Filipino

Mr. Masakayan has been Vice-President and General Manager of Rockwell Club since 2009. In
2004, he was Vice-President for Retail of Rockwell Land. Prior to joining Rockwell Land, he was
Managing Director of Streetlife Fun Dining Gallery, Vice-President for Marketing of Angelino’s
Group of Restaurants, Vice-President for Marketing of TalkBack Philippines and much earlier on
was a Creative Staff for USA Today, a major daily based in Virginia, USA. Mr. Masakayan holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration, Major in Marketing from George
Washington University. He also completed a full course in Advertising Commercial Art from
Northern Virginia Community College.

Davy T. Tan - 38, Filipino

Mr. Tan joined Rockwell Land in 2007 as Financial Analyst and Budget Manager and in 2010
became Assistant Vice-President for Business Development. Prior to joining Rockwell Land, he
spent six years with Filinvest Alabang, Inc., a subsidiary of Filinvest Development Corporation, as
Proof and Control Officer of the Festival Supermall and later as Finance Analyst. He was also
Accounting Officer at D.M. Consunji, Inc. and Junior Auditor at Punongbayan and Araullo. Mr. Tan,
a Certified Public Accountant, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accountancy from the
University of the East.

Enrique L. Quiason - 51, Filipino

Mr. Quiason has been the Corporate Secretary at Rockwell Land since 1995. He has also served as
a Corporate Secretary to Lopez Holdings Corporation, ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation, FPHC,
Maynilad Water Services, Inc., and Sky Vision Corporation, among others. He is a Senior Partner at
the Law Firm of Quiason Makalintal Barot Torres Ibarra & Sison. Mr. Quiason, a Member of the
Integrated Bar of the Philippines, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Economics and a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines, and a Master of Laws degree in
Securities Regulation from Georgetown University.

Rodolfo R. Waga, Jr. - 52, Filipino

Mr. Waga has been the Assistant Corporate Secretary at Rockwell Land since 2010. He is the Vice
President and Head of the Legal Group of FPHC, and serves as either the Corporate Secretary or
Assistant Corporate Secretary of FPHC and its subsidiaries/affiliates. Mr. Waga, a member of the
Integrated Bar of the Philippines, holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Xavier
University, and a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines.

Significant Employees

The Board of Directors and members of the senior management of Rockwell Land have been an
integral part of its success. Their knowledge, experience, business relationships and expertise
greatly contribute to Rockwell Land’s operating efficiency and financial performance.

Rockwell Land maintains that it considers the collective efforts of the Board of Directors and all of
the Company’s employees as instrumental to its overall success. The business of Rockwell Land is
not dependent on any individual person. No employee is indispensable in the organization.
Rockwell Land has institutionalized through documentation, its processes, procedures and
training to ensure continuity and scalability of the business without relying on any particular
employee.
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Family Relationships

Other than the following family relationships, there are no other family relationships within the
Board of Directors and executive officers of the Company:

e Chairman Manuel M. Lopez and Vice-Chairman Oscar M. Lopez are brothers.

e Treasurer Miguel Ernesto L. Lopez and Manuel L. Lopez Jr. are brothers, sons of the Chairman
Manuel M. Lopez and nephews of Vice-Chairman Oscar M. Lopez.

e Benjamin R. Lopez is the son of Vice-Chairman Oscar M. Lopez and the nephew Chairman,
Manuel M. Lopez.

s Eugenio Lopez Il is the nephew of the Chairman, Manuel L. Lopez and Vice-Chairman, Oscar
M. Lopez.

o Eugenio Lopez IIl and Benjamin R. Lopez are cousins of Miguel Ernesto Lopez and Manuel L
Lopez Jr.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there has been no occurrence during the past five years
and as of the date of this Prospectus of any of the following events which are material to an
evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become a director,
executive officer, or control person of the Company:

¢ Any insolvency or bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person
was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the insolvency or within two
(2) years prior to that time;

e Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other
minor offenses;

e Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree or any court of competent jurisdiction,
domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise
limiting involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities, or banking activities;
and

e Any final and executory judgment by a domestic or foreign court or competent jurisdiction (in
a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or
electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization, for violation of a securities or
commodities law.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, engages in transactions with Meralco and its
subsidiaries, FPHC, its subsidiaries and affiliates, and directors and officers and their close family
members.

Except as disclosed in Note 24 of the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements, there
is no material transaction or proposed transaction to which the Company was or is to be a party,
in which any of its directors or executive officers, or any individual owning, directly or indirectly,
significant voting power of the Company, or any close family members or individuals, had or is to
have a direct or indirect material interest.
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Resignation of Directors Arising from Disagreement

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the
date of the last annual meeting of security holders of the Company because of disagreement with
the Company on matters relating to the Company’s operations, policies and practices.

Nominees for Election of Directors

As of June [29], 2012, the Company received nominations for the following as members of the
Board of Directors for the ensuing year (2012-2013):

Manuel M. Lopez

Oscar M. Lopez

Nestor J. Padilla

Miguel Ernesto L. Lopez

Eugenio L. Lopez III

Manuel L. Lopez, Jr.

Elpidio L. Ibanez

jose T. Guingona

Benjamin R. Lopez

Manuel N. Tordesillas (Independent Director)
Vicente R. Ayllon (Independent Director)

Independent Directors of the Board

Messrs. Ayllon and Tordesillas are independent directors. The Company’s two independent
directors have one (1) share of the stock of the Company each in their respective names, are both
college graduates and possess integrity, probity and assiduousness. They are persons who, apart
from their fees as directors of the Company, are independent of management and free from any
business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably, be perceived to materially
interfere with their exercise of independent judgment in carrying out their responsibilities as
directors of the Company. Messrs. Ayllon and Tordesillas: (i) are not directors or officers or
substantial stockholders of the Company or its related companies or any of its substantial
shareholders (other than as independent directors of any of the foregoing); (ii) are not relatives
of any director, officer or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of its related companies
or any of its substantial shareholders; (iii) are not acting as nominees or representatives of a
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of its related companies or any of its substantial
shareholders; (iv) have not been employed in any executive capacity by the Company, or any of
its related companies or by any of its substantial shareholders within the last five (5) years; (v)
are not retained as professional advisers by the Company, any of its related companies or any of
its substantial shareholders within the last five (5) years, either personally or through their firms;
and (vi) have not engaged and do not engage in any transaction with the Company or with any of
its related companies or with any of its substantial shareholders, whether by themselves or with
other persons or through a firm of which they are partners or companies of which they are
directors or substantial shareholders, other than transactions which are conducted at arms
length and are immaterial or insignificant. They do not possess any of the disqualifications
enumerated under Article 3E of the Revised Code of Corporate Governance and SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2009.

All the directors, excluding the independent directors, were nominated by First Philippine
Holdings Corporation. Inc. A stockholder, Mr. [|] nominated the independent directors. The
independent directors are independent of management and free from any business or other
relationship with Lopez, Inc. The Nominations and Elections Committee passed upon the
qualifications of the directors. The Chairman of the Nominations and Elections Committee is Mr.

12



Manuel M. Lopez, and its other members are Messrs. Oscar M. Lopez, Mr. Eugenio Lopez IIl and
Mr. Vicente Ayllon.

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The Company’s amended by-laws provide that the Board of Directors shall not receive any salary
for their services as director other than an honorarium not exceeding P2,500.00 for their
attendance in each regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, or Executive Committee
but this provision shall not preclude any director from serving the Company in any other capacity
and receiving compensation therefore.

The Company’s amended by-laws also provide that the Board of Directors, officers and employees
may participate in the unrestricted profits or earnings from the operations of the Company, after
taxes, to be distributed in the manner, amounts and proportions as the Board of Directors may

determine.

Summary of Compensation Table

Annual Compensation

Year

Salary

Bonus

Other annual
compensation

CEO + 4 most highly compensated
executive officers in the aggregate as
follows:*

Granados, Adolfo O.

Masakayan, Jose Patricio S.

Padilla, Nestor J.

Pineda, Ma. Lourdes L.

Soliven, Valerie Jane L.

All other Officers gnd_DiECt?)rs

2010

P28.9 million

P2.5 million

P26.4 thousand

2010

P10.0 million

___P0.9 million

P0.3 million

CEO + 4 most highly CEO + 4 most highly
compensated executive officers in the
aggregated as follows:*

Lopez, Miguel Ernesto L.

Masakayan, Jose Patricio S.

Padilla, Nestor J.

Pineda, Ma. Lourdes L.

Soliven, Valerie Jane L.

2011

P30.7 million

P2.7 million

P20.5 thousand

All other Officers and Directors

2011

P7.8 million

P0.7 million

P0.2 million

CEO + 4 most highly compensated
executive officers

2012
(estimate)

P33.5 million

P3.0 million

P35.3 thousand

All other Officers and Directors

2012
(estimate)

P8.5 million

P0.8 million

P0.4 million

*Alphabetically arranged

Employment Contracts between the Company and Executive Officers
There are no existing employment contracts with executive officers. There are no arrangements

for compensation to be received from the Company in the event of a resignation, retirement or
termination of the executive officer's employment or a change of control of the Company.
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Warrants and Opinions held by Directors and Executive Officers

There are no outstanding warrants or stock options held by any of the Company’s directors and
executives.

Other Arrangements

Except as described above, there are no other arrangements pursuant to which any of the
Company'’s directors and officers are compensated, or are to be compensated, directly or
indirectly.

Independent Public Accountants

The external auditors of the Company is the accounting firm of Sycip, Gorres, and Velayo and
Company (SGV & Co.). The accounting firm of SGV & Co. has been the Company’s Independent
Public Accountants for the last 5 years. There was no event in the past 5 years where SGV & Co.
and the Company had any disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

The Company has engaged SGV & Co., with Ms. Maria Vivian C. Ruiz as the engagement partner,
for the audit of the Company’s books in 2010 and 2011. The Company has complied with SRC Rule
68, paragraph 3(b)(iv) re: five year rotation requirement for the external auditor.

SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
on 3 August 2012.

Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed fiscal year
are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholder’s Meeting. They will have the opportunity to
make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to
appropriate questions.

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed for each of the last two fiscal years for
professional services rendered by SGV & Co.

Year ended 31 December 2010 2011
Audit and Audit-related Php 2.8 million Php 1.9 million
fees

Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiary, RIPSI are subject to various civil and criminal lawsuits and legal
actions arising in the ordinary course of business. However, the Company and its subsidiary do
not consider any of these as material as they will not affect the daily operations of its business,
nor will they exceed 10% of the current assets of the Company and its subsidiary or have any
material effect on the financial position of the Company and its subsidiary.

Dividend and Dividend Policy

Under Philippine law, dividends may be declared out of a corporation’s unrestricted retained
earnings which shall be payable in cash, in property, or in stock to all stockholders on the basis of
outstanding stock held by them. The amount of retained earnings available for declaration as
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dividends may be determined pursuant to regulations issued by the SEC. The approval of the
Board of Directors is generally sufficient to approve the distribution of dividends, except in the
case of stock dividends which requires the approval of stockholders representing not less than
2/3 of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for the purpose.

Record Date

The Company’s amended by-laws provide that dividends shall be declared and paid out of the
unrestricted retained earnings which shall be payable in cash, property or stock to all
shareholders on the basis of outstanding stock held by them, as often and at such times as the
Board of Directors may determine and in accordance with law and applicable rules and
regulations. No fractional shares shall be issued from any declaration of stock dividends.

Dividend Policy

Subject to the preferential dividend right of the Preferred Shares, each holder of a Common Share
is entitled to such dividends. Aside from what is stated in the Company’s amended by-laws and as
provided in existing laws, the Company does not have a specific dividend policy. The Company’s
amended by-laws provide that the Board of Directors shall have the power and authority to fix
and determine and from time to time vary, the amount to be reserved as working capital, to meet
contingencies, to provide for the utilization of dividends and/or for other purposes, to such
extent, in such manner and upon such terms as the Board of Directors shall deem expedient in
order to determine the part of the nets profits or surplus which shall be declared and paid as
dividends; and generally to fix and determine the use and disposition of any net profits or surplus.

The Preferred Shares currently outstanding will earn a cumulative dividend of 6% per annum.
The Preferred Shares do not participate in dividends declared in relation to Common Shares.

Notes Facility Agreement

Under the Notes Facility Agreement, the Company, without the written consent of the Majority
Noteholders (as this term is defined in the Notes Facility Agreement), shall not declare, pay or
distribute dividends to its stockholders (other than dividends payable solely in shares of its
capital stock) if payment of any sum due is in arrears or such declaration, payment or distribution
shall result in a violation of the Current Ratio (as this term is defined in the Notes Facility
Agreement) of 1:1 and the consolidated Debt-to-Equity Ratio (as this term is defined in the NFA)
not exceeding 2.0x.

Dividend History

As of today, the Company does not have an established dividend policy. However, it has declared
dividends in the past, the last of which was in 2009. The Company declared a £0.032 cash
dividend per Common Share in July 31, 2009 to stockholders of record as of the same date. This
was paid in two (2) tranches, in September 30 and November 30, 2009.

The Board of Directors declares cash dividends primarily on the basis of the following factors:

= The Company's results of operations for the previous year and its current financial
condition including but not limited to its cash level, debt level and available retained
earnings

" The Company’s investment plans and/or projected capital expenditure level for the
ensuing year or other relevant periods

u Covenants on dividend payments which the Company is required to meet relating to any

of its financing arrangements
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Market Price and Dividends on Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Market Information

As of 31 May 2012, the Company has an authorized capital stock of £9.0 billion consisting of
8,890,000,000 Common Shares, each with a par value of £1.00 and 11,000,000,000 Preferred
Shares, with a par value of £0.01, and its issued share capital is at £6,255,882,344 consisting of
6,228,382,344 Common Shares (including 126,620,146 Common Shares in treasury) and
2,750,000,000 Preferred Shares.

Listing by way of Introduction; No Public Offering

Rockwell Land’s shares were listed on 11 May 2012 on the PSE under Section 1(b) of the PSE’s
Amended Rules on Listing by Way of Introduction, which provides that listing may be appropriate
where the securities of an unlisted issuer are distributed by way of property dividend by a listed
issuer to shareholders of such listed issuer. No public offering was involved.

Principal Shareholders

The top stockholders and directors of the Company as of 11 May 2012, their respective number of
Common Shares and the corresponding percentage of these Common Shares, are as follows:

Name of Stockholder Relationship Shareholding
No. of Percentage
Common (%0)
Shares
1. First Philippine Holdings Corp. Stockholder 3,176,986,354 51.0%
2. Beacon Electric Asset Holdings, Inc. Shareholder 1,437,382,190 23.1%
3. San Miguel Corporation Shareholder 681,646,831 10.9%
4. PCD Nominee Corporation Shareholder 186,089,180 3.0%
5. Social Security System Shareholder 177,520,579 2.9%
6. San Miguel Purefoods Company, Inc. Shareholder 166,530,579 2.7%
7. Rockwell Land Corporation Held as Treasury 126,620,146 2.0%
8. Government Service Insurance System  Shareholder 87,953,853 1.4%
9. Board of Administrator - ESOP Shareholder 39,241,331 0.6%
10. SMC Global Power Holdings Shareholder 17,103,433 0.3%
11. Manuel M. Lopez &/or Ma. Teresa L. Director 6,327,585 0.1%
Lopez
12. Lubrica, Josefina S. Shareholder 3,953,243 0.1%
13. Concepcion, Raul Joseph, &/0R Raul Shareholder 2,182,018 0.0%

Anthony Concepcion &/0R Raul
Patrick Concepcion &/0R Raul
Stephen Concepcion

14. Yan, Lucio W. Shareholder 1,136,324 0.0%
15. Cheng, Charlotte Shareholder 886,422 0.0%
16. Avesco Marketing Corporation Shareholder 801,574 0.0%
17. B. P. Insurance Agency, Inc. Shareholder 792,139 0.0%
18. Makati Supermarket Corporation Shareholder 677,238 0.0%
19. Francisco, Jesus P. Shareholder 676,370 0.0%
20. Tan, Simeon Y. Shareholder 458,804 0.0%
21. Others (Aggregate) Shareholder 113,416,151 1.8%
Total OQutstanding 6,228,382,344 100.0%

FPHC owns 2,750,000 Preferred Shares representing 100% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding Preferred Shares.

Corporate Governance
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As part of the Company’s commitment to institutionalize good corporate governance principles,
the Company formulated and executed the Company’s Manual of Corporate Governance
(“Corporate Governance Manual”) which was adopted by the Board of Directors on May 2, 2012,

The Corporate Governance Manual provides for, among others, the following:

e Appointment of a compliance officer, who shall directly report to the Chairman of the Board
of Directors, and monitor compliance with the provisions and requirements of the Corporate
Governance Manual. Subject to the further review and approval of the Board of Directors, the
compliance officer shall also determine violations of the Corporate Governance Manual and
recommend to the Chairman of the Board of Directors the appropriate actions for such
violations;

o Identification of the general duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors who shall be
responsible for the Company’s compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and codes of
best business practices in order to sustain the Company’s competitiveness and profitability in
a manner consistent with its corporate objectives and the best interests of its stockholders
and other stakeholders. The Corporate Governance Manual also directs the Board of
Directors to adopt a system of internal checks and balances, identify and monitor key risk
areas and key performance indicators with due diligence, and also monitor the effectiveness
of management policies and decisions;

e Creation of Board Committees, such as the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Election
Committee, Risk Management Committee, and Compensation and Remuneration Committee;

e Appointment of an External Auditor and Internal Auditor. The External Auditor shall ensure
the independence of the audit of the Company in order to provide an objective assurance on
the manner by which the financial statements of the Company will be prepared and presented
to the stockholders. The Internal Auditor, on the other hand, shall have in place an
independent audit system which shall provide with reasonable assurance that key
organizational and procedural controls are effective, appropriate and complied with, taking
into account the nature and complexity of the Company’s business and the business culture,
the volume, size and complexity of the transactions, the degree of risks, the degree of
centralization and delegation of authority, the extent and effectiveness of information
technology and the extent of regulatory compliance;

e Conduct of a training process for the purpose of conducting an orientation program to
operationalize the Corporate Governance Manual;

»  Procedures for monitoring and assessing compliance with the Corporate Governance Manual;
and

e Penalties for non-compliance with the Corporate Governance Manual.

The Corporate Governance Manual provides for the detailed qualifications and disqualifications,
duties, functions and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and each member thereof, the
Chairman, the Corporate Secretary and Assistant Corporate Secretary and the Compliance Officer.
It also prescribes the creation of specific board committees in aid of good corporate governance,
to wit, an Audit Committee, a Nomination and Election Committee, a Risk Management
Committee, and a Compensation and Remuneration Committee and requires the Board to commit
itself to the protection of the rights of the stockholders.

e To fully comply with the leading practices in good governance, the Board of Directors
establishes the vision, strategic objectives, key policies, and procedures for the management
of the Company, as well as the mechanism for monitoring and evaluating Management's
performance. The Board shall also ensure the presence and adequacy of sufficient internal
control mechanisms for good governance.
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e The Company is prepared to take further steps to enhance adherence to principles and
practices of good corporate governance.

Issuance and Exchange of Securities

Authorization or Issuance of Securities other than for Exchange

No action is to be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of securities

Modification or Exchange of Securities

No action is to be taken with respect to the modification or exchange of the Company’s securities

Financial and other information
The Company’s consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and were audited by SGV & Co., in accordance with
Philippine Standards on Auditing.

The Management Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Condition and Results of Operation for
the last three fiscal years required under Part [V (c) of Rule 48 are attached hereto as Annex A.

The Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements as of 31 December 2011
as well as the Audited Financial Statements prepared in accordance with SRC rule 68, as
amended, and Rule 68.1 are attached hereto as Annex B.

Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Measures

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.

Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property

Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account of
the Company.

Other Matters

Action with Respect to Reports

(a) The approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial Statements for
the year ending 31 December 2011.

(b) Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders held on May 2, 2011,
covering the following matters:
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(c) The Company’s audited financial statements as of 31 December 2011.

Matters not required to be submitted

No action has been taken with respect to any matter that is not required to be submitted to a vote
of security holders.

Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

The adoption of New By-laws will be presented to the stockholders for their approval at the
Annual General Meeting. Attached to this Information Statement is the draft of the New By-laws.

Other Proposed Action

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan will be presented to the stockholders for their approval at the
annual General Meeting. Attached to this Information Statement are the proposed terms of the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Voting Procedures

A quorum for any meeting of stockholders shall consist of the majority of the outstanding capital
stock of the Corporation, and a majority of such quorum shall decide any question in the meeting
except those matters which the Corporation Code requires a greater proportion of affirmative
vote.

At each meeting of the stockholders, every stockholder entitled to vote on a particular question or
matter involved shall be entitled to vote for each share of stock standing in his name in the books
of the Company at the time of the closing of the stock and transfer books for such meeting.

Regarding the election of members of the Board of Directors, nominees who receive the highest
number of votes shall be declared elected pursuant to Section 24 of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines. Likewise, the nominee - for the Company’s external auditor - who receives the
highest number of votes shall be declared elected.

The manner of voting is non-cumulative, except as to the election of directors and each
stockholder shall have one vote for each share entitled to vote and registered in his name. Unless
a motion is duly made and seconded, voting shall be made viva voce and counted manually by the
Corporate Secretary. Voting shall be done by balloting upon motion duly made and seconded and
the transfer agent shall count and canvass the ballots.

In accordance with Section 23 of the Corporation Code, at each election of directors, every
stockholder entitled to vote at such election have the right to vote, in person or by proxy, the
number of shares owned by him as of the relevant record date for as many persons as there are
directors to be elected and for whose election he has a right to vote, or to cumulate his votes by
giving one candidate the number of votes equal to the number of directors to be elected
multiplied by the number of his shares shall be equal or by distributing such votes on the same
principle among any number of candidates as the stockholder shall see fit.

In the election of directors, the top eleven (11) nominees with the most number of votes will be
elected as directors. If the number of nominees does not exceed the number of directors to be
elected all the shares present or represented at the meeting will be cast in favor of the nominees.

Unless a motion is duly made and seconded, voting shall be made viva voce and counted manually

by the Corporate Secretary. Voting shall be done by balloting upon motion duly made and
seconded and the transfer agent shall count and canvass the ballots.
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Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or associate
of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or otherwise
in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting.

CERTIFICATION

Upon written request of a stockholder, the Company undertakes to furnish said stockholder with a copy of
the Company’s Annual Report on SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for copy of the
Annual Report shall be addressed to the following :

Ellen V. Almodiel, Chief Finance Officer
Rockwell Land Corporation

Rockwell Information Center

Rockwell Center, Makati City 1200

At the discretion of management, a charge may be made for exhibits, provided that such charge is limited

to reasonable expenses incurred by the Company in furnishing such exhibits.

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth
in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on 13 July 2012.

By %
Enrique I. Quiason
Corporate Secretary
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ANNEX A - MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FENANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

the follewing monagement’s discussion und onolysis of the Company's financial condition and results of
operations shoufd be read i confunction with the Compony's ovdited consolidoted finartcial statements as of
Decentbrer 31, 2077 ond 2010 and fanwary 1, 2600, and for three (3) conseculive years ended December 31,
2013, including the related notes theretn, ennexed te this BProspectus, The Company's actaal rostits giing
forweard may differ materiolly from those presented in the Prospectns 05 & vesit af varfous factors including,
bat pat figvted ten those set out in the "Risk Foactors” discussion. In evaluoting the Compam's business,
nvestars shiowld carefifly consider afl af the information contained in the Prospectus.

INTRODUCTION

Hockwel]l Land's et income in 2007 amotnted o #9149 million. The Company's et income grew by
20% compounded avnually since 2009, As a percemtage ta revenwes, 2001 was stightly lower ar 15%
compared to the 2030 and 2009's 16%,. This drop was due Lo higher cost of real estae and selling,

Tatal rovenues grow faster at 29% coimpounded anooally from 20609 840 billjan v #6.2 billion in 2011,
Residential development accounts for 85% of the total revenues ol the Campany in 2071 from 2004 819
ghiare. The Company launched one (1) project every vear since 2009, bepinning with Edades,

ERTTA B 201 amoosted 1o 856 bilion representing 2696 of 1otal revennes, down fram 2070's 3095,
ERITDA is derived by adding interest expense, depreciation and amortzation and provision for inceme tax
{o Net Income. ERBITHA has prown anouatly by 179% since 2009, whore the Comamercial Leasing segment
prew faster at a vate of 23%. Commercial Leasing sccounts for 47% of the wotal EBITMA of the Company as
af end of 2011 resulting from significant improvesents in office leasing segoon’s cocupancy and rental
rate comting lrom the office market’s recovery in 2018, letad leasing playvs an important robe to the
Company's EBITDA as this comlinues 1o grow supported by the rising domestic consumption in the
l'IiHITITI}r.

The cost of real estale and selling vatie 1o ravenies registered at 58% of total vevenues ve the 2010's ratio
of 62%. The growth in costs of real estate was driven by The Grove and Edades projects, whese revenue
recepnition only started in july 2030 and Aprt! 2081, respectively. Geacral and administrative espenses
("GEA"} amanting o B644.7 million in 20T Tgrew annualby by 13% since 2009 14 remained a1 52% of
tokal reveities from 20092830 watil 4 reached 10% n 2011 doe tw operational cost cutling Moasures.,

Otiter comprehensive incame represents the fair value changes of the Company's available for sabe
investments and is dircetly charged ta eguity.

Besides the recent acguisitions, the Comjrany i3 nol aware of any event that coukd materially alfect the
statminent ol cormprehengive income reported in this Prospectus.

Hy the end of 2003, nel debt tevet was valued a1 82,4 billioo and stands ot 6.26x of otal equity. Majority of
the deld careied by the encd of 2071 was a fsed-interest torm loan deawn in Aprt] 2031 which bas a
princigal amount of #2.5 billion, As & result of higher share in net income after tax of RBC in 2011, ROE
itcressed to 1005% compared 0 2010°% 10029, Below s a tabbe showing the key perivrmance indicators
ofthe Comprany for Z009-2011,

Anroires af indicated Tor the years ended December 31

2000 2030 2009
LIS (i) 015 .13 L1
ROA 5.7% 0.2%h 5204
ROE 18.5% 10,2 % L.E%
......... Devermber 31, 2011 December 31,201¢ - January 1, 2010
Current Ratio {a) 279 134 2.36
Met debt o equity ratiofx} 026 033 34
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faotes;

EPS fNet Incowne aeteifiutalde to commeon shares/mumber of comunen shares ssued und outstending]
ROA [Net Incame/dverage Total Avsets)

ROE [Met Incomc/ Averige Toted Eyuity]

Current vado [Current assees/flurrent fabifitios]

Net delit to eyuity rietia f{ Tatal interest bearing dobt)-(Cash and cash cquivalents} / Tatal Equity]

T e

BUSINLESS SEGMENTS
The Company manages it operattons under the fullowibg business anits fsegments:

+ Residential Bevelopment is engaged in the development, selling and poperty management of
abl residentiad projects of the Carmpany.

+ Commercdial Leasing is etpaped in the leasing and other refated aperations in the coorse of the
managemenl of commercial boildings or spaces wsed for retail and office leasing incuding
cinema ppecations, Commercial Baildings iw it portfelio tnclude the Power Plact Mall in Malati
City amt Rockwell Husiness Center {RBCY in Qetlpas, Pasip. Other retad] spaces ave found ar
zeveral of the high-rise condominiums deveioped by the Compang.

RESUETS OF OPERATIONS

The following section provides information an the resubts of aperations and linancial condition of the
Lompany for the periods 2009-2011,

Rovenees

The folbowing table shows the brealddown of the revenoes by buginess segmeit for the poriods 20092011,

206211 . %to 2010 Wio 2009 "% 1o
7 Totad Total Totad
Hesidenilal Developmenti i 5,211 B 44018 i 308 1%
Commercial Leaging (2) 942 1584 oe7 184 752 1984
Tutal Consolidated Hovenues 6,153 1d0%,  4.88% 100%, 1,033 1G0%,
Share i Net fneome {Losses) & i1} 3
in fiA R
Nodes:
1. fevenues inchude side of condominfiem wnits, eccretion of interest income and othier incowmte.  Sale from

rondeninium unils are composed of the folfswing projects in the peors indiceted: One Rockwel (2017,
A8 andf 2008), The Grove (2801 and 2010} and Edades {2021 )

£ Amounts exclude reveaues from JR0C Undar the Accounting policy for o jainely contralfed entity, results
af operations of HC are not consedidated line fir line,
3. Vhese amoinets repeesent the Company's share fir che rol incoe after toax of BEC

Below s another able showing the hreakdown of revenues by type of revenue for the periods 2009-2051.

C 201 tete 2010 9% ta 2009 - - % to

Tetal Taolal Tolal

Residential Salesiy a0 H2% 3925 B 3,170 P
Loasing 150 11% oA 120 S60 1484
Otherst) 415 T 356 HE 303 T

Fotn] Coneolidatod Bovenues 6,152 100 4,885 10053 4,033 100%

Meres:

I Pertuing anly to sele of candoriiniism wnits (af present vefue] and acorelian of interest inomna,
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2o Ineludey income feoen Cinerte, porking oard olher irconme
Review of 2011 versus 2030

Total revenues amaonting 10 #6.2 bllicn grew by 26% vs, 20100 PEHAlion, About B2%% of the revenuees
amaunting ta #5.1 kllion came frem ale of condeminium unity, indading aecretion of interest income.
Sales talee up was still streng in 2081, althaogh sliphtly lower than 2010 due to fewer higher-vahied
producis avaitable lor sale. Due to the continued sirong take up af the Compapy’s products in the marke,
tite Company will izunch two [2) new profects in 2012,

Takat EBITIM ameunted to 21.6 billion, wlich s 10% higher than 2010% 21.5 billien. This year's prowth
was driven Iy Commercial Leasing sepaent. The EBITDA marpin registered at 266 of i revenues in
2011, which is bower compared to last year's 30% due to hiphor cost of real estate and seliing were
vecognized for The Grove due o higher constraction completion in 2093, EIHTRA margin is derived by
dividing EINTDHA amoont by consohidated rovenues of sepoment revenues, whicliever 1s used or specified.
Comtributions to total CENPDA trom residential development and commercial leasing ave currently at 5344
and 47%, respeclively.

Hesufting net income after tax amounts to #914.2 mitlion, up by 149 froim 2010% oot income of RE0L.3
mitlion,

The margin ol net incame after gax is at 153% of total revenuees vs 20100 16%0 The net impact of higher
cost o read estane and selling vatio in 2077 wasg veduced by a lower provision for income tax in 2011, The
effective income tax rate was lower in 201t due to the Company's share io the income of BREC is no longer
subject Lo oot L.

Business Segpments

The details of the individual performance of each business segment, in ternys of revenues and ERITDA, are
dizscussed as follmws:

Hesidential Development condvibules bulk ol the total revenuoes of 2011, Total revenues repored from
the sale of condominium units, induding sccretion of interest income, amount 1o A5 10Elon.  This
accounts Jor B2% of the towal revenues of the Company. The 30% grewih in segmmenl revenue was
primarily attributabde to kigher sales and percentage of completion of The Grove and the starl of
recognition of revenues from dades in April 2011, degpite the zipotficant drop in revenne from One
Hackwell's completion it November 2011, Revenues recognized lor any given period is a function of both
the pereentage of catnpletion of construction works and the incrementat sales recorded lar the period.

Safes 1ake up declined to B4.9 hillion romn 203005 26.4 hillion as 3 result of having fewer inventories of
higher-valued units by 1he start of the year, 1o lerms of units sobd, Lake up was only stighdy tower by 8%,
The Company expects 10 have sipnificant prowth in sales tale up with the new projects from the recently
actpuired lots in Makati and Quezon City, which are both due for launch in 20712

ERITEN from this sepment amoont to BELZ.7 miltllon and contributes 53% w the tetal EBITDA of B1.6
bifkionr. Despite high revenue growth, SBITDA prew al a slower pace of 1% due mainly from higher cost of
real estate and selling expenses. Higher constewetion accomplishoment for The Grove and Bdades have
increased both the cost al real estate and selling expenses, particutarly ameortization of prepaid
comissioos and marketing costs. The said amertization of prepaid costs and higher sales commiszions
grew in line with revenue growth, while macketing expenses grew Gster o sopport the introductian in
Agast 2011 of phase Wiree or Towers E & F of The Grove.

Comrnerciad Leasiing revenues amount to 99415 million, which is 9% highor than 2000's revenues of #
Bo6E milllon. This sepment contributes 15% w0 twolal vevenues, This excindes the share it the joint
venture (11BC) ax thiv is reported as "Share in Ned Income {Losses) in ]V under Othor Income (lixpenses)
and not censolidated line Ly be i the consolidated financial statements,
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The details of the performances per source of revenve steeam ave explained as foltows:

+  Retail Operations amount W #7413 mitlbion and accouwnts for 12% of total revennes, Retail
oporaticons include retad leasing, interest income gnd other mall revenues, Abowt 39% of retadl
operations comoe leem retail leasing amounting to B657.9 million. Retail leasing accounts for 11%
al the total revenues of the Company, which grew by 986 vs. 20105 revenues of BAE83.6 million.
This maindy resubted from rentad esealation, Bevenues from cxhibils prow Gester at 2655,
gencrating full yoar revenoe of B43 million. The growth ol the satne stores was a1 5% in 20011,

»  {inema Qperations amonnt be B2003 mildon and i accounts for 3% of the letal revennes,
Revenues reported under cinema operations include interest tncome. This prew by 11% ftom
2010% 180.E million due to higher ocoupancy of 30 amd 20 titles,

« (Hlice Leasing, operated by the Roclowell-Meralco 3P0 Venture, generated gross revennes alf
P258.1 million, which i ¥3% higher than 20107 P10 million due to highor cocupancy of the
buildings. At dite B80S share,  the  Company  peoerated  rovenuwos of
#206.5 million and shace in oet income of B79.9 million. To reiterawe, onty the B79.9 million share
it net imeone af B0 I8 reflected in the Company’s consolidated statements of comprebensive
income as “Share in Net Income {Easses) in [V

The segment’s EFTIA amounied to #7648 miliion accounting for 47% of the towat EITDA of RLO billion,
EBFTDA grew by 22% Mrom 200140's FIHTDA of #6280 million. Margin to tolal segment revenues improved
L B1% from 2010% 7200 as a result of the sipnificant improvement i the oflice segiment of the Company.
The total revenues used as basis for the BIHTOA margin excludes pross revenues fram the office leasing or
REC operations as the latter is reported separately under "Share in Nel lncome {Losses) in [V, By 2011,
the Company reported for the first time 2 posttive share inonet income from the operaiions of the RBC. The
improvemnent resulied from both higher average rental rates hooked Ior new tenants and the significamt
improvement of the iovel of sccopancy from 010 790 1o this year's 95%. Share in net incame in the
joint venture coniriintes 5% Lo the Company’s tolal ERITIMA amounting 10 83,6 billion.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of real estale and selling amounts to 84,2 biltion in 2011, The percentzge o tolal revenves is m
BU, up from 2010's 625 catio. This increase was due to hipher construction completion of Towers A & B
of The Grove whose nmepins ace sliphthy lower compared w projects sotd in Makati City, SeHing expenses
tncreased by 38% duc o dncreasced amoridzalion of propaid costs using the same percemape of
constraction completion and conlinued strong sates ake-up performance wiich increased by 16% over
gamd period tast vean

Genernl and administrative expenses (GE£A} amount to BOA44.7 million and represents 108 of the total
revenuss, an improvement from A0 and 200%s ratio of 12%, The level of oxponses prow only by 11%
vi, 2000 BRE2.Z willion. Hipher wopenses were repored {or manpower costs amd taves aod loeases,
Manpower costs increased doe to 2 159 increase in headoount from 2010°% 134 to 2011 154, Taxes and
Licenses grew hy 39% due to bostness permit and payment of transfer and registration fees required in
transfecring tides of Fand to condominivm corporadions of ully sold projects,

dnterest Expense amounted o #1826 million, which tv 19% hipher than 2010% 21532 million. The
increase was mainky due ta additional P10 billion deht secured to pardally fund land acquisiton Average
interest rate, however, tmproved  significantly with the refinancing of  the
1.5 hillion corporate notes of the REC in Apeil 2011 with fixed rate of 7,39 pao. from the previcus vake of
HAY: paa

By the ond of 2011, towal debl ameunling to 2.9 billion has an average interest rate of 7.1% pa., lower
tian Jast year's 784 pa.

Share in Net Income {Lasces) in fV recorded posgitive income ol #7999 milliop from 2010's kess ol $1.0
milion. Fhe improvement was mainky doe W the level of cocupancy which increased from 79% 1 9550 in
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AL, Fhe share in ocl inceme i reponied net of texes and represents the Company’s share in the
operations generated by RHE,

Provision for ncame Tax

Proviston lor income 1 amaounted te 2903 million, which is 2% lower than 2000's provizion of #2972
million. The decrease in effective 1w race is primaridy attributable to the share in net incene of RBS which
i et subyect o dnconie tax,

Preject and capital expenditeres

The Company spent & totat of 835 billion for project and capital expenditures in 20011, which is 134
higher than same period in 2010, The expenditares For 20011 consist of 46880 land acguisition, 499
residential development cost, and 68 property and cqoipiment costs.

Decreases in residential development cost came mostly fram One Rockowell with the completion of the
canstruction of its West Tower in November 2011, The significant increases were investinents recorded
For Bdades and The Grove,

Financial Condition

Tatab Agzets ax of Decomber 33, 2001 amouned 1o E18.0 billion, witich increased by £24.1 billion frem
2014Fs amount of B13.9 hillion, Assels wainly grow (rom band acquisitions, recopnitien of receivables
from angoing peojects and hipher development coste. Land acquisitinns were partially funded by a long-
termn boan facilily drawn in April 20011, Bridpe financing wers availed thraopghool the year o fund
dovelopment costs for The Grove. Other funding reguirements wore funded intemnalty by revenue
cedlectioms from cominercial leasing.

Current ratio s of Pecemnber 31, 2011 ix healthy at 2.79x from .36x the provioos year, Likewise, not dehit
1o ety ratio impreved to .26k in 201 1 from 3.33x in 2010

{Ilher Matters

The Company acquired a 1.8 hegare property along Santoedas Hoad in Quezon City and & 3.6 heotare
property at the cormer of LI Rival Avenue and Usteella Stecot o Juoe 2011 and November 201,
respectively. These projects will be Baunched in the first guearler and second half of 2012, respeciively.
The Tirst propecty will become the Company™s first townhouse develgpnrest and the second property,
known as the "Greawer Rockwell” project, is meant o expand the Bockwell Conter in Madkati Gty with
another mixed-used development.

fausies for any maleriod chonges (+/- 5% or more} In the inanciol stalements

ge 201 we 2010

Alabemr

3&6% increase in Sele of Condomirium Units
Muindy due from higher vabue of baokings and constrecrion completion of Hdades and The Grove.

g imcrease In Lease Income
Mainly duc 10 rental escabation from beasing eperations which grew by 9%, bn addition, exhibil rentat
posted higher prowds of 26% ve, same period in 2020, Same stores growlh was at 595,

9% decredse In lnterest Income
Malaly due to bower imerest income accretion arising from lower bevel of Cae Bockwel receivables,

T185 increage v Cinermg Heverye
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Mainly due 1o higher avcupancy bevel and higher average ticket price. By April 2010, the Company has
twn £2) theaters converted with 20 and 30, which ingreased the averape ticket price by 694,

238 fneroase i OEher Revesno
Maindy due to increaso in packing revenoe and rental revenoes from the Plaza tent.

3N frrerease fr Cost of Real Estate

Bue 10 hath higher hooking of sales and constvuction campletion of The Grove and Cdades. Significant
mcreases were recorded for Edades as the project only started Lo recopnize related casts in Aprid 2011,
Growth rate is consistent with the 38% growth in revenoes recopnived from the sale in condomininm
units vs. same period last year

FI% ircroase In Geneval grd Admfristrelive Eapatses
Mainly due to incrensed manpower capenses and taxes and livenses from costs toe Lransbor tties of land 1w
the respective condominium corparations of ully sold projects

SEY fnerease tn Solling Expenses
Mainby due to higher amortization of prepald marketing and commission expenses, ax a result of higher
pereentage of completion recognized lor the peried for both Hdades and The Grove Phase 1 projects.

T9% increase in Ineerese Expense
Priemarily due lo additional Ioans availed in April 2011 e partially fund B1.1 billion land acquisitions
made starting June 2011,

f.623% incroease in Share in Net Inooman af jaint Ventine
Mainly due 1w positive apevating results fram BBC, avising (rom hipher occupancy level which increased
from 749% to 95% in 2011 and lighor rentat rates negotiated Mo new tenants in 2011,

I20% increase i Fareign Exchonge Goie

Resubted from the Company's effort 1o maintzin minimal dollar positions throughout the year therelore
reversing the 20105 recopnized losses. The Company had falby colleded alf of it dodar-densminated
receivabtes from salo of condominiim units during the early part of 2011,

MRS fncroase in Marle-te-markol Goln from Devieative bstrumonts
Mainly «due to the lower outstanding derivative instruments within the year, § 900,000 wvs
£ 24 million in 20310,

1475 Increase fa Comprehensive Loss
Mainly due 1w devrease in fzir market value of clob shaves held by the Company.

Statement of Financinl Pesition items - 2003 vs. 2010

403G frcvease in Cosh and Casl Penvalents
Frimarily because of sebgtantial collection of final paynient from the completed One Rockwelt project.

T0% increase in Trode and ehor Recejvalbde
Mainly due to addittonal receivables recopnized from phase 1 of The Grove, pactiably offsel by the
sabstantial collection feom Qne Hockwelt project.

113% increase i Lond aod Developmeni Cost
Maosily due te Jand acguizition of the Greater Boclwell property {34 hectares) and Santelan property (1.4
licctare) having an agaregate zmoung of 4.0 hillien,

77U Imcrease in Dorwdnnninfism URits for Sole
Reclassification of completed units of One Bockwell from Land and Development Cost account due to its
campletian i Oetolor 2011

1% decrease in Other Current Assets
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Mainly due 1o reclassibcation {0 Other Moncurrent  Assets of Inpot VAT amoonting  to
HEL0.06 millken which i expected 1o be recovered throwsh A refund aim,

14% increase in Noncwrreat Trade Recenulbles
[he 1o higher sales with payment terms extending to mare than T year.

6% decrease in Avaifuble-for-Sale investmenis

This s mastly because of decline in the market value per share of Rockwetl Club. In accordance with PAS
39, YFinancial nstruments, falr vatue of available-for-sale investments is determined by reference to
market bid quoter ax of financial roporting date. Markel pricey used are published quotes of hrokers
which represent actual and regotardy ecowrring transactions on an arm's leopth basis, A financiad
instrument is regarded as quobed inan “active” market it prices are readily and reputarly available from an
exchange,  dealer,  and  broker,  indestry  proup, priciog service  or regelatory agency.

i interedse in frvcstment Properlics

Mainly due w reclassification of the correspending land and development costs of certain areas of The
Grove (incuding Land], One Rockwell and Bdades intended for leasing fron Land and Bevelapment Cost
Aecolnk.

A% Increeee in lmvestirent in falnt Venture
Drve to the B9 millicn reported share inthe income of REC for 2011

33% decrease i Pension Asget
Mainly due w higher provision of vetirement benelits ecxpense. Na additionat contribution was made on
the pension fund since 2010 as this was still averfunded,

Inorease of WES0. 7 mrillion in Other Noncorremt Assers

Mainly due 1w the recognition of the Doforred input vat from the aoguisition of the Grealer Rockwel)
fropenty amounting To #3273 mitlion, net of current portion, and the reclassification of Euput VAT from
Other Cumenl Asses, as previously giscussed,

F0% increase in Trade and Other Pavo bles

Doe te accroal of development costs of The Grave, increase in lindiliy aviziog bram oxcess colloctions over
recogndzed receivables of Bdades and higher retention payalte of One Roeckwell  Retemtion fees are
withhebd a5 security and will be refeased 10 the contractors afler one {11 year rom completion of the
congiesction,

949% decrewse in Current Fortion of beterest Boarivg fLoans and Dovrowings

Mainly due to the classilication in fast year's financial stalements of the corporate notes amounting to #
1.6 hillien, where the Balance wag entirely reported as current in view of its refinancing in Febreary 2031,
Abwidpe loan was drawn in Febroary 2011 to prepay the old corporate note and was repaid oncg the new
corporate notes faciliny was entered into in April 2011,

1000 fncroase in Curvent Portion of Instaftment Povalite
The amount represents the present value of the stalinwent payable due i 20027 velating to the acguisition
ul1he Greater Roctowell property.

G2 deerease In Depasits fram Presefling of Condanitmiun Units
Mzinly from the recognition of revenues from the Ldades praject using the percentapge of completion
methodd i Apeit 2071,

H14% fnerease it Non-correat Portion of Interest fearing Loan

Primarily hecause of the pew £2.5 hillion corporate notes deawn by the Company in April 2013 used to
refinance cxisting cobligations of BLS billion sod wilth the balaoce wsed o partially finance land
Acqueisilinns.

078 decrogse fn Doferred Tox Liahilivies
e b the substantial eollections of final payment from the completion of One Rackwell prajoct [East and
Wesd Tonvers).
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IG% decrease in Deposits and Qther Lickilities

Mainky due to reclassificatlon of retention lees payable retated o One Rockwetl project under carrent
Fahibies (under Trade and other payables]. Retention fees are payabie to the contractors normally after
the expiration of the defeet Habitivy period of gng year from the praject’s completion date.

A7% incroase in Relafned Kornings
Phae 1o net incarme after tax ol 82149 mitlion

Revigw ol 2010 versus 2009

Hockwell Land's reported net income atter tax of #8013 militon, which is 264 bigher than 200%°% net
income of #6335 million,

Total revenues amounting to B9 billion grew by 21% ve. 2009's 4.0 billion, Aboul 80% of the total
revenes came from sale of condomintum units, includinp accretion of the related Interest income. Sates
take up mwore than doubled compared o zame period last year dee Lo sirang gates take-up of The Grove
and ldades. The Company launched Towers € 8 12 of The Grove in june 2010, adding about 950 units
mare for pre-zetling, 1o 1ake advantape of the strone property market in 2000, mainly die o lower
interest rales and increased market liguidity.

Total EUITDA amounted to #1.5 hillion, which is 24%) higher than 2009's #1.2 hillisn.  ERFTDA margin
way slighty higher a1 30% f0 totalb revonues compared to 20049 2909, LETDA from vesidential
develapmend and convmerciat leasing account for §7% and 439, respectively. Opeations from RAC
shwowed recovery fvom 2009°s net loss of 8379 million to net loss of 210 mitlion by 2010, This was driven
by the recovery in the office marker in 201 where rental ratex and demand began to pick up.

Met income after tay marpin was kepl al 16% of revenue, same with 2009, Inleresl expensc increased in
Z0TH as 2 resudt of the Ddkvear recognition of the inlerest expense an RAC's corparate notes, since this
was capitalized unti July 2009, Dexpite the mcrease in interest expense, the Share in Net Losses in |V
innproved sigrificandly in 2010

'l"\l L

The detaile of the individual perlarmance of each husiness segiment, o terms of revenoes and EBITDA, are
discussed ny follows:

Residential Developmient contributes badk of the conwolidatod revenues for 2010, Total revenues
reported from the sale of condominium units, incueding accretion of interest income, amoont to
139 billion. Fhiz aceornts for 80% af the total revenues of the Company. The sepment’s revenue prowth
of 220 vs. same period it 2009 was mainly due o higher value of Bookiies and constiuction completion
of Fhe Grove, which accounts for 708 Lo the tetal increase in vevenues compared wo same period last year,
Hevenue recoghttton of The Grove statted in July 20140,

HSales take up doubled in 2000 16 Fod billeon due to a vory strong market expericneed by most of the
propenrty devetopers in the Philippines,

EWTIA of restdential development amounted o 88434 militon, which grew by 24% from 2009's R6FL9
million, Thiz zccounts for 57% of the total #1.85 hillion ERITIA of the Company in 2050, ERTNA margin
was kepl at 21% of the gepment’s revenues a5 cost ol read estate and selling was kept at 62%. GHETDA
growth was in Hae with the revenue growth of Qi segment.

Commercigl Leasiing rovenues amoent 1o PE66.8 milion, which is 155 higher than 2009' revenues of
#7519 militon. This sepmoent contributes 18% w tolal revenues. This exchudes the share in net {osses of
joint ventere [RBCY as this is reported as part of the “Share in Net Income {Losses} in 1V under (lher
fncenne {Expenyes] and aol conselidated Hag Ty tine v the consolidated finaocial statements,
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The details ol the performances por source of revenue stream are explained as follows:

o Petail Operations amom 1o #6E60 million and accounts fov 54% of todal revenves.  Retail
operations inclute retatl leasing, imerest income and olther mall resvennes. Abowt 38% of retail
eperations come from retail leasing amousnting to BH03.6 millien. Retat! leasing accounts for 129
of the total revenues of the Company, which grew hy 8% vs 2009'5 revences of #560.3 million,
This prowth in retail feasing resuled mainly from rental escalation, Same slores prowth
registered at 78 in #0010, In addition, vevenues from exhibits prew sigoificantty arv Z7%,
generating bl yoar revenue of #1320 million in 20110,

v Ciitemia Opoerations amounting & P1830E mitlivo accound for 4% of tie total roventies, Bevenuees
reporied under cinrma operations include interest income. This sepmont grow by 349% {rem
2009'y #1354 million due maindy from increase in ticket rates and higher occupancy from two [2]
cingma theaters newly equipped in 2030 with 30 and 20 techaolagy.

o Office Leasing, opovated by the Rockwell-Meraleo BPO Yepture, gencrated gress vovenues of
£149.0 miition, which i 9 higher than 20049's 415.8 million. 2010 mavked the first full year of
RIC since it only starled commercial aperations in July 2009, A 80%, the Company penerated
rovenues of #119.2 millian and share o net loss of 809 million. RBC reached cocupancy of 79%;
vs, last vear's 19%.  Hocovery in ihe office market stavted W creatbe positve impact to bath
desmand rental rates,

The segmens EBITRA amauneed wo FE2E.0 miilion and account for 4350 of the wotal EEITDA of
H1Y hillion. The segmont’'s BIATEA grew by 2495 fram 20049 Overall margin to segment
rovenucs inproved from 689 10 729 in 2000 as @ result of hoth relailt and office leasing
operations which grow eamings by B%and 999, respectively.

Costs and Expenses

st of real estate and selting amounted 16 33.0 hillion and accounts Tor 629 of Lotal revenues, similar o
200% Cost of real extate grew in the same manner as sale of condominiom unitx, Faster prowth was
recotded fov sabes commission duc o strony sales porformance. Sales personng] wcreased by 13% 1w
support the streng demand lor the product and the lauwnch of zdditional units of Towers € & B of The
Grove in June 2000,

tretieral and administretive cxpensey (CGEAT) amount to #5821 million and accounts for 12% ol total
revenues. The level of expenses prow by 16% v, 2009 85029 millicn. The level of GRA cxpenses was
kepd at 129 of total revenues since 2008, Higher expeases were reporied for cinema operations due (o
higher producer’s share. In adition, aher fHCreases it
GEA cxpenses resulted from higher depreciation charges from asset retirements a5 well o% from o one-
Liote write ol al other receivehles.

Interest Expense xmounted to #1539 million, up 95% from 20095 B79.0 million due (o the full year
recognition of interest expense on foans relating to EBEC. Interest payments on these loans were
capittlized wid July 2000, Deb Jevel was a1 £3.0 hillion from last years 82,9 hillion, Bridpe luancing
was availed over the year to facllitate construction completion of One Reckwell and initial development
costs for Fho Grove, Average inderest rate of the tolab delsd waz 78% pa., which was Iower than the 20097
d4.2% pa

Share in Net Inconie fLossest in JV recorded losses of B337 thousand frem 20095 insses of F37.9 million.
The improvement was mainly due 1o the level of occupancy which incressed from 19% o 9% in 2014
The share in ned income is reported nel of taxes and represents e Company's sharve in the opevations
gencrated by RBE.

Forelgn Exchiange Gafn [Loss) - nel amounted 10 #19.4 million, kigher by 38% compared (o the same
period kst year. The Philippine peso sharply approciated from #4020 135001 as of end of 20049 1o 4843 04/
USDT by December 33, 2000 theecfore sosulting to higher foredmn exchange losses in ils dodbar-
denominated reccivallos,
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Frovision for Income Tax

I'rervision for income taxes increased %) year-on-yoar resoiting fronm increased income ftom operations in
207360

Project and capliial expenditure

The Company spent o total of F3.F billion for projecet and capital expenditures in 2010, which is 59%
higher than same period in 2009, The cxpenditures far 2010 constst of 93% for residential pooject
cevelopment costs and the remaining B3 for property and equipment casls,

Stpnificant increases in residential development mostly came from One Rockwell project az it completed
the fipst Power in December 2010 apd e Grove. Construction lor the “Garage” office along Estrefla
Strect and mapor venovations in the Power IMant Mall drave e increase in propecty and cguipment costs
in 2010,

Financial Condition

Todal Assets as of December 31, 2030 amounted to 2139 bilion, which ncreased by #1.9 billien from the
2009z #12.0 biflion tevel. Aussets nmatnly grew from recopgnition of receivables tram angoing nrojects,
especially from One Hockwell's completion af its Hast Tower, and inereased development costs for The

Grove and Edades.

Current ratio dectined 1o 1.36% sx al end- 2010 from 2.36x in 2009, Bowever, this was mainby due o e
reclassification w Current liabilities of the LSS billion Corporate Notes by year-end 2010 in view of the
planned refinancing in February 2007, Without this reclassification, cunent ratie as of December 31,
2000 would bave been at 2.01%. On the other hand, Net debt to equity ratio only slightty improved
(1.3 3x foom 0.34x in 2309,

Causes for any material changes (+/- 5% or more} in the financial statements

Satnmenl of Comprehensive Incom Jems - 2080 vs, 2009

P2 incrense in Sale of Dordanrinfem Hnils

Mainly arising from higher sales booking and constructton completion of The Grove, which started 1w
recogiize incotne fer Towers A & B in fuby 2000, Units booked doubled 2020 due to stiong market
concitions,

B4 Fncrease in Loase fncene
Frimuavity dee to rettal cscalatian lrom Eeasing aperations which grow by 8% Exhibit rental posted a
higher prowth of 275G vs, same period in 2009, Same stares sales performanen frowih was st 7%,

77% fncrease in fntorest Income

Helades project was launched in August 200% Fhe increase in interest income was the flbyear reatization
of interest incoe aceretion from the sHd project, in addilion W strong sales performance in 2034 In
addition, phase 2 [Tower C & D) ol The Grove was launched in June 2010, which furthet increased interest
income.

34 % increase in Cinemn Revenue
By April 2010, the Company has two {2} theaters converted with 2D and 3. This incrensed ocoupancy
and the average Ucked price by 6%,

1248 increase fn Other Hevenue
Mainly chae from reversal of accruals which will no Jonger be paid.

21% dnerease in Cost of Real Escate
Maztly arising {rom The Grove peopect's stard of revenue recognltbon in July 2010

16% fncrease in Genevad gad Administrative Expenses
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Mainiy due from higher pradocor’s shave, depreciation expense and write-ofl of bad debts.

329 fncrease tn Selling Pxpenses

Due 1o the amottization of prepaid costs ol The Grove, which started to recognize revenues and expenses
in July 2000, Soles commissions and manpower cosis zlse increased due 1o strong sales take-up
perfermance compared to 2009,

Q50 increese in frlerest Frpenses

Starting July 2009, interest expense o inlerest-bearing {oans and borrawings whose proceeds were used
1 finante the constructon of RBC building were taken wp as povied costs. Prior W the completion of the
construclion of the HBGC buiiding in july 2009, rekated interest expense was capitalized, 0 2034, 1hese
intorests were expensed aut for the full year resufting (o the increase i inlerest expobse,

i decrense in Share in Not Lassor af foint Venture
Priimarily due to the fulb year aperation of Bockwell Business Coier ve. 6 months of operations in 20049,
{ccapancy also increased from 19% 10 79% by end of 2009 and 2010, respectively,

FHincredse i Prinision for Income Tox
Maindy due o increase in income before tas vs, 2005

I8Y increage 8 Fareign Exchange Goin or Loss
Mainly due w the substantial pesa apprectation in 2030 with the # to (50 exchange race at 84384705101
i Pecember 31, 2010 vy, BAGIQ IS in December 21, 2009,

221549 incrgese in Cosnprefensive Income
Mainly due to increase in labr markel value of all available Tor shares held by the Company. Fair market
values increased by 14% compared to same period last year

Statement of Financial Position tems - 2000 vy, 2009

18% decrease in fosh and Cush Lquivalents
Mainly due to payments for project-mclatod exponses,

F67% fncreave in Trode and Qther Recefuble
Mainly due Lo the higher One Rockwell receivables recognition as it already neared completion of East
Tower in February 2611,

2H8 increase i Liand and Peveloprient Cost
Artsing from higher development cost of existing projocis.

33% decrense i Advarees Lo Contrmciors
Lue to recoupinind of advances Lo contracts from the One Rockwell East Tower project which is almost
complote by December 2010,

7658 decroose [ Copdominiue Unies for Sole
e to the zabe aof units from campletod projects, Joya Lofts and Towers and Maoansala,

I7% increase in Quher Current Axsels
Mainly due fo increase in prepatd marketing cost of Fdades and The Grove and inpua VAT,

Z70% decrease it Noncurrent Trade Recefvalles
Mostly due to reclassification of One Rockwoell receivables as H neared the end of the payment lerms,

1% fnereose in Avenilable-for-Sale Investments

Mainly due to inerease in market vabue of Rockwell Club Shares. b accerdance with PAS 39, Financial
Instruments, [air value of availablo-for-sale investments is determined by relorence b markel bid quotes
as of fingncial reperting date. Market peice used are poblished quotes of brokors which represent actusl
and regularly occurring transaclions on an aci's lenpth basiz A financial instewment is regarded as
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quated fn an "active” market il prices ave readily and regularly avaitabie from an exchange, dealer, broker,
sty group, pricing service or regulatory agengcy.

1185 trcrease In Propoerty and Bquipment
1ae toincrease in machineries and equipment.

4% decrease i Peasion Asset
Mainly due mo higher unrecognized net actoarial gains.

S8% incrowse in Trode end Other Payables
Malndy due to increase in One Rockweil development cost accrugd, higher Deferred cutput VAT and higher

exness collections over recognived receivables related to the Grave Propict.

259% incrense In Cweeent Portfon of Interest Dparing Loans and Borvowings and 87% decreose i
Noreurvert Fortion of frterest Bearimg Loans and Bovrowings

Mostdy due w the reclassification of (he comporate nodes toa crent maluring lahility, in view of the
refinoncing seheduwled by February of 20031,

6% incredse In Deposit fram Pre-selfing of Condominium Heits
Maindy due to substamial collection from pre-selling of the Edades project.

1% increosa in Deferved Tox Lickitities - net
e to the increase o sale of condeminium vnits of The Grove thal is not yet sobject to income tax,

1% frerease in eposits and (her Liohilitios
Mainky duwe to the sot-up of relontion pavables related to the ongoing projects,

G988 increase in Retained Earmings
Due to inconte realized in 2000 ol 48031.3 millicn.
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||"|| ROCKWELL LAND

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The mansgement of ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION is responsible for the preparalion and fair
presentalion of the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010,
and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, including the additional components

altached therein, in nccordance with Fhilippine Financial Reporting Stansdards.

This responsibility inclndes designing and implementing intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentalion of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

" fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounling estimates tha
are reasonable in the cireumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial slatements and submits the same 1o
the stockholders or members.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co, the independent zudilors, appeinted by the stockbolders has examined the
consolidated {inancial stalements of the company in accordancs the Philippine Standards on Audiing, and in
its repor! 10 the stockholders or members, has cxpressed Hs opinion on the faimess of presentation upon

completion of such examination. _

Manuel M. Ledpez Nestor J. Padilla Ellen V. Almodiel
Chairmag of fhe Board Chief Execufive Officer Chief Finaneial Officer

Signed this 28" day of March 2012

kel | Endastention Center, Rockwel | Cearer, Mokati, Philippines Phone (622} 793-0085  Fax (6314030509



SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before mo this 28" day of March 2012 at Pasig Ciiy,
affiants who are personally known to me, exhibiting to me their Community Tax Certificate Mos.
and Compretent evidence of identity as follows:

Name

Ellen V. Almodicl
Nestor J, Paditls

Manuel M. Lopez

* Doc. No. Jéb;
PagaNo. 11
BookMNo. _ T ;
Series of 2612,

CTC # andfor Competent
Evidence of Identity
Passpoct # EB0353983

355 # 3320908025

Passport # XX3751497

S5 # 0226604576

03153976
SSSH 03142972

Flacefate of Issned

Expires on 6//15;
DFA Manifa

Expires on 5/19/14
OFA Manila

1414412 ; Quexon City
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Consolidaled Finapciat Statements
December 21, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010
Ard Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

i
H l“ ‘ [“ H Rockwell Land Corporation and Subsidiary

and

independent Auditors' Report

SyCip Goreas Volaye & Co,

SGVsCo

EN EansT & YOUNG
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SHEENST A YOUNG
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INBEFERBENT AUDITORS' REMORT

The Stockloldea s ad e Board of Birecloss
Rackwel} Land Cempormion

We have sudited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rockwell Land Corporation
and Subsidiary, which comgrise the consoluluted statements of oaneiz! positien oy st Decembor 17,
200 E and 2000, and Jamerey 1, 2000, s the consobidatod statenmens of comprebentsive eome,
statements of chanpes in cquily and statemenis of cash fBows for the three years ended December 38,
2001, and a summary of signilicant acceunting pobictes and wiher explanatory information,

Manegesrent '8 Nespanxibdfity for the Consalidited Figanciod Niaremems

Manuprement 15 yosponsille for the prepwation wnd fer presentation of these consolidated financial
statemends in accordance with Philippine Fiancial @eporting Swandands, and Tor such Bernal corifrol
a5 managanenl Selcamnines i necessary o engble e preparation of consolidzied finaucia) sbacinems
that are fpee frony makerial misstatozent, whedoer due o lkaad or error.

chuditars ' Respansibiliy

e respons i Y 5 10 expeess an opinion en these consobidated Tnancial statements hased onoour
audits. We canducied ow audits i accordance with Philippine Standards on Awdiisg, Those
standards require s we coniply with vlhdcsd requircinents sod plan ad perforae the audit to oblain
reasanable assurance show! whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
ntisstadeiment,

An audit imvelves perforniog procedires o obtain andit evidence abond the maoents aod disclosures
i the comeadidated financial stawaents. The procederes sefecied depepd on the auditar's pudpment,
Hchdineg the assessiwns of e risks of material misstatemeant of e consolidited finansial scments,
whethaer due do frand oF error, [ignaking diose risk assescmeints, the auditer considers interal conlrot
refevant o the enlity™s preparation and Tair presemation of te consolidated financial statements in
orcler 1o desipi audil peocedaees O sre appropriade in s circonstances, Tl nob for e guarpoese of
expressing & opimion on the elteclivensss of he ciily's Inlerng] conteed. An audit afso includes
evaluating e appropriaencss of acooming palicies used and the reazonablencss of aceonnting
estingaies inade by manseement, o5 well as evalumting the overadl presentalion of the consolidased
financial siatements.

W beticwve that the sudit ovidence we hove oldained is sufficient and appropeiate to provisde a basis o
our wudit apiion,

rﬁﬂl[ﬁE]EIIIEIIEIEEEIIEﬁliEi%lllllé



gl Censr & YOuNG

U“WHHIIHliimuwr*"' SGVeCo

Oninion

P In our opinion, the consolidated Moawial statements present fairdy, i all material respects, the
financiad position of Rockwel! Land Corporation and Subsidiary as a1 Decembor 31, 2011 anel 2010,
atnd Jarnesry 1, 2000, and (heir financial performance and their cash Tows for the thees years eoded
December 31, 2011 in accordance with Philippine Financis! Reporing Standards.

SYCIF GORRES VELAYQ & OO

hiaria Vivian C. Ruiz

Parinct

CTFA Centificate No. B364Y

SEC Accrediation Mo, GO7I-AR-2 {Graup A),
Pebruary 4, 2010, valid unizf February 3, 2013

Tox Tcdentilbcation No, TO2-084-744

IR Acereditation Wo, 08-0019298-17-2009,
June 1, 2009, vablid untl bMay 31, 2012

PR Mo, 3174823, January 2, 2012, Makati Cily

February 28, 2012
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ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION AND SUBSINARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CATERLS i Thowsands)

Ieeemhber &1,

Ereceranbae 31,

Jomvaoy £,
A0

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2611 2080 (Mote 32)°
ARBLETS
Coprel Assels
Cazh and cach equivslentz {Hotes 0, 27 and 263 P47, 035 BI120,700 B30 524
‘Fride and ofher receivables (Howes 3, 14, 27 and 78] 550,%16 20530 75863
Land and develogiment caszs (Males &, 11, 15, 17 ond 20) £5.554,593 2614768 2, EHLTF5G
Advancey Lo contrsciars (hotc 8) B2 E5R T97.214 1. L85, 300
Condominium unily Yor sate 63,504 13,319 55,047
Lherivitivie tssels { Tdodes 2%, 27 apal 283 . 3] -
Catbacy current sesads (Motes 10, 15, 27 and 27} 447,130 REER Aot 74
Tirtal Carren Msse 0007032 3624 4724 4. 707,257
Mopeurrenl Assels
mancin et wrade receivabies (Motes 7, 14, 27 and 28] 44,377 IR 53,703
Avaitable-Tor-sale mvesmnenis { o O X7 andd 28} b2 (r B ATR04aR 204 B08
Divestre it propoetics (Notes 8§, 12 amd 14) 4,751,168 4453505 4. 80F, 542
Mvessiment in gainl veamdure (Mode 12 2,103,101 2,023,201 2024 LR
Peopedty s equiprment {Fote L2 $44,390 446,300 403,704
Poessiow gszet (Mote 223 13402 ERR L &5, HAt
Edhee soncunment wseky (Mote 151 450,603 : -
_____ Firlal Mongurrem Assels 8060418 T2H00I  72E3 687
R B17.956,450 139343050 fFEEOYI 914
LIARNLITIES AND EGUITY
Current Liabilities
T ond other payabibes {Motes 16, 17, 54, 37 and 285 P332, T 1, 50005 $EGD 2
Currene partson ol intesest-hearing, loans and borcowinges
[Muedes 7, PR, b4, 27 ok 28 2IRA1S 27320577 ThH0,5903
Canenl poddiene ol instatimont payeide {Hote 15) 651,734 . --
Mheprosits fron pre-selling af condusoiniam unils N 8) ZR3B2G e 343,196
Tecoma tax pavalle 32687 KR PER ek
Prerovulive Tabditics iMates 25, 27 and 28} - - 4 2006
Torat Careent | iabiliies o BASOAT0ARGERRT 19930
MNoncurrent Liabifilies
Imecest-heating leans and bormowings - net o careead
preetipn (Motcs 7, 8T, B, 27 and 253 T ARS,IAE 283,240 2,148 518
Installment payable - ool of carzent pottion (Wote 15} 1,170,658 - -
Erefeered 1ax lalililics - net {Nete 233 05,576 210,894 183,007
Deprsits and ather liahikiies (Notes W17, 28 and 28) Z5] 450 A0k, 100 Aia427
Tow] Mpncuren] Liskiltties R 5,279,241 709,236 2,564,034
Fotal Liabilitics 8.535.71) % 667,278 4,575,242
Fasgueiiy
Cagtilal g1ech (Noe 1E) G 2R5 HED 6,295 852 GoUNN ERD
Linrealized padn (fosst on avaifallo-far-sabe ivcst s
[Noie @) 13071 A0 [2E50)
Relarnesd cﬂ:m@_s{_NnJF]E] B ] 1.808.0R80 1,563 TR t, 0476
fffffffffffff Tolal Eiuily S 49,147,734 247,074 TAISGT
A T ek b o S ATk N

FAmes presenied i of Imary B 2000 are the same restatod amaunts a: of December 3, 30600,

Soe crocengrnlpien Motk Lo Cnlenfefitedd Firnee il Niveteireantc
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ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION AND SUBSIIMARY ]
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amounls in Thoosands)

Years Ended Deceanber 31

2011 2010 2008
REYENUL
Sile of condamittiom units ¥4 SHE 106 3,374,040 LR TR L
Lesnss ineome (Maote 11) (Lo &03,602 60,318
Interost income (Mo 19 217,089 570,954 322310
{linEma revonne 190006 130,708 135,227
Hhees {Mote [2} 189049 134605 138,610
I . 6,152,687 4,884,510 4,023,204
EXPENSES (INCDME)
Cost of roal cxtate (Nokes 11, 26 and 24) 550539 2,827,913 2357201

peneral il sdmainislrutive exponses ;

(Modes 7, 15, 20, 21, 22 and 24} 644,734 G210 502 924
Setling caporses (Notes 20, 21 and 22 23027 212,090 PGl 164
Interest eapense (Mates 14 and 205 LR2 450 153,868 a2
Sl in net losses (income) of joinl venkure (ot 12) (70,861 a3 ITEGA
Foreign cachange foss {gain) - net {iNote 27) (3,700} 19,379 f4,0258
Mark-do-markei loss fgain) from denvative instruments

(Mode I8 04 (10,3543 LNy

3,947,517 3,785,983 F bR E G
INCOME BEFORE fNCOME TAX L, 205,180 10685337 Q11,255
FHROVESEON FOR EINCOME TAX (voie 23} 20,277 A0Y 30 7Ll
MET INCOME 914,903 B307F 633,513
OTHER COMPREIEENSIVE INCOME

(LSS} - et {Mote @) {14,23H) 3,005 1,300
TOTAL COMPREAENSIVE INCOME PO, 655 RE31 4112 P£3d 815
Lamings Fer Share [Notc 24 F.15 R FO.18

e aovemparging Mofes o Condselickited Fingnctal Siidermenis.
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ROCRWERL LAND CORPORATIHIN AND SUBSITHARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN LORTT v

(Amoeais in Thowsands)

Unrealized
Coataa 1 oxs) o
Avallale-
for-Nake Relaingd
Capetad Siock Investoents Earrings
xxxxx Elohe THY (Mot 9 fote 18] Toast
AL Dcember 3L 2010 b6, 255,552 [Pl 11,903, Th3 B 147074
Mot incoee . 4,003 '}Id,ﬁﬁim
Ofher comprehonsive Ioss__ s s (14,238)
Toad comprehwsnive ingeme for the veor - (4, 238) 914, ‘J‘IH G658
Ad Deceinber 39, 2011 Pa. 255 802 E‘-!.l,!’_"."i P 58784546 P9,147,73%
AL Decobey 18, 2004 TN L (26863 P1.3462470 PTALS62E
Nk ineome - - BiH, '-!'i'.l'J' EQE 307
CHber comyprebicnsive feonic - 30 005 FeL5HS
Total comprebensive moome for theyear e 6008 8405, 3'2[? s 303
At December 31, 2010 CPeISSER2 RIAd ViwaTEN  PEddra7d
J‘L_I:_Ilg.’i(:gy_ﬁ_:;_n:__’i_!___?_i}ﬂ_-‘.? _________ 16,255 462 (IR ByI0all 6,082 S{3
Net income - - £33.513 6315813
Othie comprebiensive inemee - R - 1,300
Fored enmprebensive income for the year i £ 304 6iLE13 ti4813
Lash dividends TR .15 ) N {201.630)
At Degembar 31, 2000 B, 255 RR2 t__i'_’? (:i'iﬁ] JPLAGRATe PRATS AT

S atewtinnge i pirter Mewes o Consefidated Finccicol Statemonss.
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ROCKWELL LANIY CORPORATTON AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

fAmpunis in 'Thoosands)

¥ ears Ended December 33

LIFTLLL LT PR FL IR E R e e e L e 21}]] ?ﬂ’ﬂ (LI zﬂng
CASH FLOWS FROM QFERATING ACTIVITIES
Fncoine belore incoame tax El,205, 180 PELOOE 52T Fi1,25%
Mdjustments for
Interesd moome (Mele 193 ] [P0, 054)} (IR
Blepreciation and amaization {Notes 11, 13 and 203 210,720 210,057 T i
Fntcrest cxpeitse {Mote 209 171,355 150,934 a2
Share in nel losses (income} of jeinl vomune {MNote 12) (73501 a3y 37, RGS
Pension costs [MNote 22 16,370 13,738 24540
Amortizaticn and writc-oft of losn transaction cosis
(hlate 209 11,204 2,533 2,470
Linrcakized foreton exchanpe poie - not (5,535) (15,150 {¥.647)
Murk-to-market loss (gaind from derivalive instruments
{Note 257 " 304 {1,354) {1,370
Write-ofl' of other receivalbrdes {MNote 20) - 21,029
Crivdn on sitde of propenly and cyuipmeon “ {11 (¥}
Ciperating incame heloee wotking capifal chatpes L5 1LORT 44,571 T 440
Lhoorcose (icEoase]) in;
‘Frade and ther recebvahles 5B AT [1,27%0,805) a3y a47T
boand e develipoionm cosls 93, TI2} (5T, 500} 443,197
Addvances 10 conlractors {15,664} JEE, 164 (254 650
O1her cUTFCnL D5Sets {13,761) (B, T9%] (39,068}
Comnelonnniom uneks for salc {50,185) 41,018 2E786
Inereeie (deerouse) in;
Trade and viber payables UTH, 155 504,622 {1.4083:58)
[repuosits Teom pro-seiliog of condoniium wnits {457, 156) JuTTas 6 988
Cordrnnians o plan assets (Mol 233 - - {61,320
Mot caxh pererated fbotn operations 1.0 4,851 IIET] GlG 462
Encotne taxes praid {4M,154) {263,160% {143,397}
fieresipwid . (190223) {156,638 (77,997
Moot eash prgvidedd by {useil jm) operating selivijies 393,469 (12 V808
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acguisitions oft
Fropey and equipment (Mowe 13) (63, 10%) (135,145%) (03,834
Invesimend proprertios (Noke 11} (19,88 EERT LY (001 BS2)
lidarest feceived 2RA8T 21,540 2407
Procecds Irom sale of properny and oquipment - 5465 1,433
et cush wsed i1 ovesting sutivilies (57,742} BRI, (R0, G}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Froceeds (ot availmens of bank foans (Wote 143 4, 22554 704 SE% [,EB32ED
Payments of bank boans (Mote 14) {4,356,296) (690,653) (752,176}
tnerease {decredse) in deposits kod gther Babalitiey {53.0GF} el X
Rividends panid (Nole FR) - - (2015640
Mat cash provided by fused in} looncine aclivitics {214,416} 156,539 157,106
EFFECT OF EXCHANGLE RATE CHANGES ORN CASEL
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SN 5.1 9,350
NET INCREASE (DECHREASLE) IN CASII
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 127,229 {71518} (GBI
CASI AND CASF EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING O YEAR X0, TG 32,5249 456,336
CANIE AND CASH EQLIVALENTS
AT ENIOF YEAR (Mot i) P44 7.085 13 20, P3aR 524

See acoaryunying Noter in Coaseligined Fiuarc ot Stitoments.
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ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION AN SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIBATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amonnts in Theasands, Excep! Number of Shares, Earnings er Share Valne
and Usttess Oiherwise Specifiod)

1.

Corperrate Information

Pockwel Land Corporstion (he Parent Companyy is incarpermed in the ithilippnes snd is
ctgazed ooreaf esate development il sale o lease of residential and commerciz] units and Jols,
Tl repastered office md principal place of husiness of the Pasent Company ts 1811 F 17 Rizal
arrect, Makati Ciry.

Rockwell Intepraied Propony Services, lae, (RIPER, & wholly owned subsidiary ol the Parent
Company, i incerporated i the Philippines 1o cstablish, own, manape, operse and cammy on the
bisiness ol maiulaiving sk cleaning buldings and other facibities.

The Parent Company iy owsed [y Manila 323ecirc Compasy (Meralead (3 P55 and First Phikippine
Hefdings Corporation (FPHCY {49%), On Pebraary 27, 2002, the Board of Directors {3003 of
Meralen approved dhe deckation al 3x 5 0% owncesdip o the Nren Company &5 a propery
dividend it Fovor of commaon stockwobders ol record ss of Tlarels 23, 2002, except for foreipn
commani sharchodders wite will e paid the cach equivakent of the propeny dividend,
Cuonseguently, e Parent Company became a public company having more than 200 shareholders,

On Febreoaey 28, 2002, the BOD ol the Pavent Coanpany spproved she Pacend Compaey's plun o
list By way of mtredaction A of Fobrusny 38, 2002, the Parent Compsny still bas to fle dhe
necossary requarentenls with fhe Securities and Excliange Commission amd the Philtppine Siock
LExclange.

T accompanying consolidetied {inancial statements were approvad and authorized for issue by
Elye 13D o Fehroany 28, 20012,

ts

Bazis of Preparation and Statemment of Compliance

uaiy nf Prenaration

The svconpanying consalidaled fmanciad statements of e Parert Company wsed REPS]
seofleclively referred o as *'the Company™ have beent prepared on a historical coss basis, excepl
lor avaitablu-fir2ode investmens and derivative instiments that have Been measured a1 fagy
viloe, The consalidoted financial staterments are prescated in Philippine peso, which s the
Cortpany s fimctional and presentaticn cuteency, All vabues are sownded to the nearest Thousands,
excopt when othenwise indicared.

Stemend of Compinaes

The Conpany’s consalidated fTnancts] siutements have beenr prepared in sceordance with
Phelippine Finuncia? Reportig Standards {PFRS). PFRS includes stalemenis named PFRS and
Phileppine Accownting Stanbards {FAS), Including bmerpretationg issued by the Financial
Hueparling, Standards Counerl (FRSC)H

AR
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Dasts of Consofidation
The consotidated financtal statements comprise of the Parent Company and RIFSLL

The subsidiary is cosalidmed from date of acguisition, being the dute onwhich the Parent
Compaty obiains control, and cantinoes to be consalidated il the date that such contrel ceases.

The linancial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Conpany ssing consistent accouming policies. All signilicant intercompany balanees,
transactions, Incoime and axpenses and profits and losses from inlercompany {ransactions are
eliminated In fudl in the consolidution.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Bisclosures

The aceounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Company s consalidated financisd
statements ane consisient with those of the previous finanelal year, exeept {or the adoption of the

. Taliowing new and amencded PAS, PR35 and 'hilippine Interpretations which were adopted as al
Jarwary 1, 2001, The adeption of the feltowing, amendments and inerpretations did not have
material cffiect on e sccounting pelicies, financial position or performance of the Campany,
except for additionnl disclosures.

e PAR 24, Befared Parte Discloswres (Amendment) felffective for annual pertods Bosinhimg on
or after Janoery 1, 2011

FAS 24 elarifies twe defintttons of o related pany. Tlie new dellnitions emphasize a
syuumetrical view of related party relationships aod clarify the circumstances in which persons
and key manarement personne] alfed refated party refationships of an eniity. In addition, the
senendinent introdoees an exomption from the peners) related party disclosore requirements
for transactions with govermment and entities that are controfled, joinlly comirofbed or
signdficanthy infuenced by the same government as the reporiing enlily.

v AR 32, Fluenefel Iistenments: Presentcdfion {Amendment) - Classification of Righis faes
{efleeiive for unnsal periods beginning oo or after Febroary 1, 2010)

The nmendatent akers the definition of a financial Hability in PAS 32 o ciable cntities 4o
chasstfy rights issues and certatn options or wartants as equily instruments. The amendment is
applicabe I e rights are given pro rata 1o all of the existing owners of the same class of an
enlity’s non-dertvative eguily instrumestts, 1o acquire a fixed munber of the entity’s owmn
cpuily Instruments for a fixed amotmt in aty currency,

*  Philippine Butempretation IFRIC 14 (Ameodiment), Prepenwnents of a Ainimum Funding:
Reguiremeny (effective Tor annual periods begioning on or alter January 1, 2011, with
retrospective application)

The amendmer removes an unieended consequence when an endity is subject 4o minimm
ey cequirements and mahes an eacly payment of conu ibutions {o cover such
requiteiments, The smendment permits a prepayment of fuinre service cost hy the entity to be
recopniied o3 @ pensbon assel. Te Conpany i nod subject (o minimam fanding requiremends
in b Philippines.
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Improvements to PFRS (Issued 2010)

Improvements to PFRSs, an omnibus of amendments to standards, deal primarily with a view to
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. The adoption of the following amendments resulted in changes to accounting
policies but did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

PFRS 3, Business Combinations: The measurement options available for non-controlling
interest (NCI) were amended. Only components of NCI that constitute a present ownership
interest that entitles their holder to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation should be measured at either fair value or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components are to be
measured at their acquisition date fair value.

The amendments to PFRS 3 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments - Disclosures: The amendment was intended to simplify the
disclosures provided by reducing the volume of disclosures around collateral held and
improving disclosures by requiring qualitative information to put the quantitative information
in context. The Company reflects the revised disclosure requirements in Notes 27 and 28.

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: The amendment clarifies that an entity may
present an analysis of each component of other comprehensive income maybe either in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company provides this analysis in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Other amendments resulting from the 2010 improvements to PFRSs to the following standards did
not have any impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the
Company:

PFRS 3, Business Combinations {contingent consideration arising from business combination
prior to adoption of PFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)]

PFRS 3, Business Combinations (un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards)

PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

PAS 34, Interim Financial Statements

The following interpretation and amendments to interpretations did not have any impact on the
accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Company:

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Cusfomer Loyalty Programmes (determining the fair value
of award credits)

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments
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Standards. Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards Not Yet Effective

The Company did not early adopt the following amendments to existing standards and
interpretations that have been approved but are not yet effective as of December 31, 2011. Except
as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption of these amendments and
interpretations to have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Effective in 2012

PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recovery of Underlying Assets (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2012)

The amendment clarified the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured
at fair value. The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on
investment property measured using the fair value model in PAS 40 should be determined on
the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through sale. Furthermore, it introduces
the requirement that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the
revaluation mode] in PAS 16 always be measured on a sale basis of the asset.

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure
Requirements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,2011)

The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred
but not derecognized to enable the user of the Company’s consolidated financial statements to
understand the relationship with those assets that have not been derecognized and their
associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment requires disclosures about continuing
involvement in derecognized assets to enable the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement in those derecognized assets. The
amendment affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Company’s financial position or
performance.

Effective Subsequent to 2012

PAS 1, Financial Statement Presentation - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income (effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012)

The amendments to PAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive
income. Items that could be reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in
time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately from
items that will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and has
therefore no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment) (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013)

Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor

mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendment to PAS 19.
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PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011) (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013)

As a consequence of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, what remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting for
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements.

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011) (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013)

As a consequence of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been
renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application
of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates.

PERS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with
retrospective application)

These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related
arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required for all
recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with PAS 32. These
disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or “similar agreement”, irrespective of whether they are set-off in
accordance with PAS 32. The amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format
unless another format is more appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information.
This is presented separately for financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end
of the reporting period:

(a) The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities

(b) The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position

(c) The net amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position

(d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:

i. Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32
ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral)

(e) The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above

The amendment affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Company’s financial
position or performance.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013)

PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues
raised in SIC-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. PFRS 10 establishes a single
control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes
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introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine
which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent,
compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013)

PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC-13, Jointly-controlled
Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11 removes the option to account
for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that
meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method. The
application of this new standard will have no impact on the financial position of the Company.

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013)

PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated
financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31
and PAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also
required.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013)

PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements.
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides
guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted.
The Company is currently assessing the impact that this standard will have on the financial
position and performance.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013)

This interpretation applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface mining activity
during the production phase of the mine (“production stripping costs”) and provides guidance
on the recognition of production stripping costs as an asset and measurement of the stripping
activity asset.

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - OffSetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, with
retrospective application)

These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set-off”” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms
that are not simultaneous. While the amendment is expected not to have any impact on the net
assets of the Company, any changes in offsetting is expected to impact leverage ratios and
regulatory capital requirements. The Company is currently assessing impact of the
amendments to PAS 32.
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= PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2015)

PFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in

PAS 39. In subsequent phases, hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets will be
addressed with the completion of this project expected on the first half of 2012. The adoption
of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Company’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on classification and
measurements of financial liabilities. The Company will quantify the effect in conjunction
with the other phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive picture

=  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion,
except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under

PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is
recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the
construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the
buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The
Philippine SEC and the FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final
Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and an
evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the
Philippine real estate industry is completed. Adoption of this interpretation will result to a
change in the revenue recognition of the Company on sale of condominium units and
accounting for certain pre-selling costs.

The Company continues to assess the impact of the above new, amended and improved accounting
standards and interpretations effective subsequent to December 31, 2011. Additional disclosures
required by these amendments will be included in the consolidated financial statements when
these are adopted.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturity of three
months or less from date of acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are
included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except for financial
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. In the
case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as
applicable, is done using trade date accounting.
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Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interests, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax benefits. Financial instruments are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset and intention to settle either on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified into the following categories: financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets and other financial liabilities. The Company
determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this classification at each financial year-end.

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. Gains or losses on financial assets held for trading are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets may be designated by management at initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss when any of the following criteria is met:

= the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on a different basis;
or

= the assets are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both which are
managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; or

= the financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recorded.

Derivative instruments are also classified under this category unless they are designated as
effective hedges under hedge accounting. Assets classified under this category are carried at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company enters into forward currency contracts to hedge
its currency exposure. Derivative instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date in
which a derivative transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when
the fair value is negative. The Company has opted not to designate its derivative transactions as
accounting hedges. Consequently, gains and losses from changes in fair value of these derivatives
are recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses being recognized as other comprehensive income in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or until the investment is
determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income section is transferred to expenses (income) section of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are valued at
cost. Assets under this category are classified as current assets if the Company intends to hold the
assets within 12 months from financial reporting date and as noncurrent assets if it is more than a
year from financial reporting date.

- This category includes mainly the Company’s investment in Rockwell Leisure Club, Inc. (RLCI)
shares and Manila Polo Club shares (see Note 9).

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. Financial liabilities are classified in
this category if these result from trading activities or derivatives transaction that are not accounted
for as accounting hedges, or when the Company elects to designate a financial liability under this
category.

The Company’s derivative liabilities as of January 1, 2010 are classified under this category
(see Note 25).

Other Financial Liabilities. The Company’s financial liabilities classified under this category
include mainly interest-bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 14). All loans and borrowings are
initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs, if any.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

This category also includes the Company’s trade and other payables, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, installment payable, retention payable and security deposits (see Notes 14, 15, 16
and 17).

Determination of Fair Value. The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in
organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of
business at the financial reporting date. When current bid and asking prices are not available, the
price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has
not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the transaction. For
financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using reference to a similar instrument for which market
observable prices exist, discounted cash flow analysis and other relevant valuation models. The
Company uses discounted cash flow analysis using an imputed rate of interest in determining the
fair value of the trade receivables from sale of condominium units. Differences may arise between
the fair value at initial recognition and the amount determined at initial recognition using the
discounted cash flow technique. Any such differences are amortized over the term of the
instrument using the effective interest method and taken into profit or loss for the period.

(LT |



11 -

Day I Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 profit) is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases
where unobservable data is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is
only recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 profit amount. The Company has
determined that the discounted cash flow analysis using credit-adjusted Philippine Dealing and
Exchange Corporation (PDEx) interest rates is appropriate in determining the fair value of
retention payable, with the Day 1 profit treated as a reduction from “Land and development costs”
as these are directly related to project development (see Notes 8 and 17).

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
company of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= theright to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

= the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each financial reporting date whether a financial asset or group financial
assets is impaired.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount
of loss shall be recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset
is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment. The Company considers breach of contract, such as
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments as objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of assets is impaired. For both specific and collective assessment, any collateral and
credit enhancement are considered in determining the amount of impairment loss. The carrying
amount of an impaired financial asset is reduced through an allowance account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets, particularly trade receivables, are written off to the extent of the amount
determined by management to be uncollectible. Those with pending cases in court are
recommended for write-off, subject to management’s approval.

Assets Carried at Cost.. I there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets. The Company treats available-for-sale financial assets as
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists. If an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, is transferred from other comprehensive income
to profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Reversals in respect of
equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognized as part of profit or loss but as
part of other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are generally reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of profit or loss if the increase in fair
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value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Land and Development Costs

Subdivided land is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Expenditures for
development such as construction materials, labor and overhead costs are capitalized as part of the
cost of the land. Borrowing costs are capitalized while development is in progress. This account
includes condominium projects which are not yet complete. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs to complete and sell.

Condominium Units for Sale

Condominium units which are completed and are for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost includes the cost of the land, expenditures for the construction of the
condominium units and borrowing costs incurred during construction of the units. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. As of year-end, condominium
units for sale are stated at cost.

Investment Properties

Investment properties represent land, building, structures and improvements of the mall

(the “Power Plant”), other structures held for lease within the Rockwell Center and land held for
appreciation. These, except land, are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition
criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Land is
carried at cost (initial purchase price and other costs directly attributable in bringing such assets to
its working condition) less any impairment in vatue. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of investment properties, except for land. Investment
properties are estimated to have a useful life of 5 to 35 years.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period of derecognition.

The investment properties’ estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each
financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, at each financial year-end to ensure
that the periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefits from the items of investment properties.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
investment property as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another
party. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in
use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a
view to sale. These transfers are recorded using the carrying amount of the investment property at
the date of change in use.

AL AR



- 14 -

When an entity uses the cost model, transfers between investment property, owner-occupied
property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred and they
do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Investment in Joint Venture

The Company has an interest in a joint venture which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the
venturers have a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities
of the entity. The agreement requires unanimous agreement for financial and operating decisions
among the venturers. The Company recognizes its interest in the joint venture using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment in joint venture is carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Company’s
share in net assets of the joint venture, less any impairment in value. The consolidated statement
of comprehensive income reflects the Company’s share in the results of operations of the joint
venture. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with the joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the Company’s interest in the joint venture against the related investment. Unrealized
losses are eliminated similarly but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred. The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Upon loss of joint control, the Company measures and recognizes its remaining investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the former joint controlled entity upon
loss of joint control and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. When the remaining
investment constitutes significant influence, it is accounted for as an investment in an associate.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except land, is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing,
net of accumulated depreciation and/ or impairment in value, if any. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of such property and equipment, if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as incurred. :

Land is carried at cost (initial purchase price and other costs directly attributable in bringing such
assets to its working condition) less any impairment in value.

Depreciation and amortization is calculated for each significant item or part of an item of property
and equipment on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 15-35 years
Office furniture and other equipment 5-10 years
Transportation equipment 3-5 years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are
reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.
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When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial
asset (e.g., investment properties, investment in joint venture and property and equipment) may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or CGU is considered impaired and
is writien down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less cost to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other
available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. Those budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after
the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amounts, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment. The Company assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The
Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
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Sale of Condominium Units. The Company assesses whether it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company when the sales prices are collectible. Collectibility of the sales
price is demonstrated by the buyer’s commitment to pay, which in turn is supported by substantial
initial and continuing investments that give the buyer a stake in the property sufficient that the risk
of loss through default motivates the buyer to honor its obligation to the seller. Collectibility is
also assessed by considering factors such as the credit standing of the buyer, age and location of

the property.

Revenue from sales of completed real estate projects is accounted for using the full accrual
method. In accordance with Philippine Interpretation Committee Q&A No. 2006-01, the
percentage-of-completion method is used to recognize income from sales of projects where the
Company has material obligations under the sales contract to complete the project after the
property is sold, the equitable interest has been transferred to the buyer, construction is beyond
preliminary stage (i.e., engineering and design work, execution of construction contracts, site
clearance and preparation, excavation, and completion of the building foundation are finished),
and the costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Under this method, revenue is
recognized as the related obligations are fulfilled, measured principally on the basis of the
estimated completion of a physical proportion of the contract work.

If any of the criteria under the full accrual or percentage-of-completion method is not met, the
deposit method is applied until all the conditions for recording a sale are met. Pending recognition
of sale, cash received from buyers as “Deposits from pre-selling of condominium units” account in
the liability section of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Any excess of collections over the recognized receivables are presented as part of “Trade and
other payables” account in the consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 16).

Cost of real estate sold is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition method applied.
Cost of condominium units sold before completion of the project is determined based on actual
costs and project estimates of building contractors and technical staff.

Contract costs include all direct materials and labor costs and those direct costs related to contract
performance. Expected losses on contracts are recognized immediately when it is probable that
the total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. Changes in contract performance,
contract conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty
provisions, and final contract settlements which may result in revisions to estimated costs and
gross margins are recognized in the year in which the changes are determined.

Other costs incurred during the pre-selling stage to sell real estate are capitalized as prepaid costs
and shown as part of “Other current assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial
position if they are directly associated with and their recovery is reasonably expected from the sale
of real estate that are initially being accounted for as deposits (see Note 10). Capitalized selling
costs shall be charged to expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized as
earned.

Lease. Lease income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms or based on the terms of the lease, as applicable.

Interest. Revenue is recognized (using the effective interest, which is the rate that exactly

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).
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Cinema, Mall and Other Revenues. Revenue is recognized when services are rendered.

Dividends. Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is
established.

Operating Leases
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of

ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same bases as rental income.

Equity
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax.

Retained earnings represent the Company’s accumulated earnings, net of dividends declared.

Pension Costs

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all regular and
permanent employees. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses
for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or losses
are recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating
in the plans.

The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits have already vested, immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and
the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such
aggregate is negative (defined benefit asset), the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate
or the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in the future contributions to the plan.

Income Tax

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
financial reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is
recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the financial reporting date.
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Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are

directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. To the extent that
funds are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization on that asset shall be determined as the actual
borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings. To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization shall be determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalization rate shall be the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs
capitalized during a period shall not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred during that
period.

Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in
progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred. Capitalization of borrowing
costs ceases when all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are
substantially complete. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognized.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying the economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, such as under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as an interest expense.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are

disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post-year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position
at the financial reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding.
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Segment Reporting
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately into two business

activities. Such business segments are the bases upon which the Company reports its operating
segment information. The Company operates in one geographical area where it derives its
revenue. Financial information on segment reporting is presented in Note 30.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset and liability affected in future periods.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements:

Operating Lease Commitments. The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains ali the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties, which are leased out under operating lease arrangements.

Lease income eamned from investment properties amounted to 657.9 million, P603.6 million and
P560.3 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 11).

Transfers of Investment Properties. The Company has made transfers to investment properties
after determining that there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of owner-occupation,
commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction or development.
Transfers are also made from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view
to sale. These transfers are recorded using the carrying amount of the investment properties at the
date of change in use. -

Transfers to (from) investment properties amounted to £392.3 million, nil and (B32.1 million) in
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 11).

Interest in a Joint Venture. Management has assessed that is has joint control in its joint venture
agreement (see Note 12).

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. Entities are required to disclose for each
class of financial assets and liabilities the fair value of that class of assets and liabilities in a way
that permits it to be compared with the corresponding carrying amount in the Company’s
consolidated statement of financial position, which requires the use of accounting judgment and
estimates. While significant components of fair value measurement are determined using
verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates and interest rates), the timing and
amount of changes in fair value would differ with the valuation methodology used. Any change in
the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect the disclosures made by
management.
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The fair values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are set out in Note 28.

Contingencies. The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of
the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with
outside counsel handling the defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential
results. The Company currently does not believe these proceedings will have a material effect on
the financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the
strategies relating to these proceedings (see Note 26). No provision for contingencies was
recognized in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
financial reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Revenue and Cost Recognition. The Company’s revenue recognition policies require management
to make use of estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenue and
costs. The Company’s revenue from sale of real estate is recognized using the percentage-of-
completion method.

This is measured principally on the basis of the estimated completion of a physical proportion of
the contract work, and by reference to the actual costs incurred to date over the estimated total
costs of the project. There is no assurance that such use of estimates may not result to material
adjustments in future periods.

Impairment of Financial Assets
a. Loans and Receivables

The Company maintains allowance for doubtful accounts at a level considered adequate to
provide for potential uncollectible trade receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated
by management based on the results of the specific and collective assessments of impairment
of financial assets, considering the Company’s collection experience and other factors that
affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the
length of the Company’s relationship with the customers, the customers” payment behavior
and known market factors. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would
therefore differ depending on the judgments and estimates made for each year.

Provision for doubtful accounts and write-off of other receivables totalled 2.0 million,

P21.0 million and B0.3 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 20). Trade and
other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, amounted to £2.6 billion, 2.4 billion
and P0.6 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively

(see Note 7).
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b. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

The Company considers available-for-sale financial assets as impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective
evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgment. The Company treats “significant” generally as 20% or more and
“prolonged” as period more than six months for quoted equity securities. In addition, the
Company evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted equities
and the future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities.

Available-for-sale investments amounted to £262.2 million, £278.0 million and
P244.9 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively
(see Note 9). No impairment loss was recognized in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Net Realizable Value of Condominium Units for Sale. Condominium units for sale are carried at
the lower of cost or net realizable value. Condominium units for sale, stated at cost, amounted to
P63.5 million, P13.3 million and 55.9 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1,
2010, respectively.

Estimated Useful Lives of Investment Properties and Property and Equipment. The useful life of each
of the Company’s investment properties and property and equipment is estimated based on the period
over which the asset is expected to be available for use. Such estimation is based on a collective
assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The
estimated useful life of each asset is reviewed at each financial year-end and updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence
and legal or other limits on the use of the asset. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in the amounts and timing of recorded expenses
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated useful life of
any items of property and equipment, and investment properties would increase the recorded
depreciation expense and decrease investment properties and property and equipment accounts.

Investment properties, net of accumulated depreciation, amounted to 4.7 billion as of December 31,
2011 and £4.5 billion as of December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 (see Note 11).

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, amounted to P444.4 million,
P446.3 million and P403.7 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010,
respectively (see Note 13).

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed when
certain impairment indicators are present. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

Determining the recoverable amounts of long-lived assets, which requires the determination of future
cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets,
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial
statements. Future events could indicate that long-lived assets are impaired. Any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the financial position and results of
operations of the Company.
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The preparation of estimated future cash flows involves significant judgment and estimations.
While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in these assumptions may materially affect its assessment of recoverable values and may
lead to future additional impairment charges under PFRS.

Noncurrent assets that are subject to impairment testing when impairment indicators are present
are as follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

Investment properties - net (see Note 11) P4,731,168 P4,453,505 P4,501,552
Investment in joint venture (see Note 12) 2,103,102 2,023,241 2,024,178
Property and equipment - net (see Note 13) 444,399 446,309 403,706

The fair value of the investment properties amounted to 8.9 billion, 8.0 billion and P7.0 billion as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively (see Note 11).

No impairment loss was recognized in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Deferred Tax Assets. Management uses judgment in reviewing the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each financial reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of such deferred tax assets to be utilized. However, there is no assurance that
sufficient taxable profit will be generated to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets amounted to B51.6 million, B51.4 million and £55.6 million as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively (see Note 23).

Pension Costs. The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.
This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates on government bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms of maturity approximating
the terms of the related pension liability.

Actual results that differ from the Company’s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over
future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in
such future periods. While management believes that the assumptions are reasonable and
appropriate, significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may
materially affect the Company’s pension costs.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.
Additional information are disclosed in Note 22.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, total pension asset amounted to

P33.5 million, 49.9 million and £65.6 million, respectively. Since there is no minimum funding
requirement, the resulting net asset recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
was determined as the lower of the surplus of the plan and the present value of the future service
cost to the Company. Net cumulative unrecognized past service cost amounted to P17.2 million,
P23.3 million and £29.4 million as of December 31, 2011and 2010, and January 1, 2010,
respectively. Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) amounted to (P22.1) million,
P13.9 million and 2.1 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010,
respectively (see Note 22).
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6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

Cash on hand and in banks P119,822 B61,981 P178,015
Short-term investments 328,113 258,725 214,509
B447,935 R320,706 B392,524

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments consist of
peso and dollar-denominated placements made for varying periods of up to three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective
short-term investment rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term investments amounted to 10.6 million,
P1.5 million and 5.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 19).

7. Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of:

December 31, December 31, Janwary 1,
2011 2010 2010
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units - net of
noncurrent portion of P44.4 million
in 2011, 239.0 million in 2010 and
P53.7 million in 2009 P2,378,247 B2,183,249 R367,180
Lease 92,134 73,599 75,271
Sale of club shares 3,398 3,875 4,232
Advances to officers and employees 9,450 7,458 8,933
Others - net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of 3.5 million in 2011,
1.4 million in 2010 and £2.9 million
in 2009 67,587 57,158 41,947
P2,550,816 22,325,339 £497,563

Trade receivables from sale of condominium units are noninterest-bearing long-term receivables
with terms ranging from 1 to 5 years. Unamortized unearned interest on these receivables
amounted to P25.2 million, £22.3 million and £25.7 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010,
and January 1, 2010, respectively.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, the gross undiscounted trade receivables
(both recognized and future receivables) from sale of the “No. One Rockwell” (One Rockwell)
and “The Grove” condominium projects amounting to 0.2 billion, 1.1 billion and 0.8 billion,
respectively, have been assigned as security for interest-bearing loans and borrowings

(see Note 14). Under the terms of the assignment, the Company will deliver all Contracts to Sell
and customers’ copies of the Condominium Certificates of Title covered by these receivables to be
held in custody by the counterparty until the receivables are paid and/or repurchased by the
Company. In order to enforce the provisions, the Company irrevocably appoints the counterparty
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as its attorney-in-fact with powers of substitution to, among others, sell, assign, transfer, set over,
pledge, compromise or discharge the receivables in whole or in part.

Trade receivables from lease represents short-term receivables from the “Power Plant™ Mall
tenants and from other commercial establishments on properties held for lease within the

Rockwell Center.

Trade receivables from sale of club shares are receivables arising from the sale of RLCI shares.

Advances to officers and employees mainly representing cash advances to be used for operations

are noninterest-bearing and will be settled within one year.

Other receivables mainly consist of claims from contractors and advances to suppliers.

The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts of trade and other receivables are as

follows:
Lease Others Total
Balance at January 1, 2011 - £1,431 P1,431
Provision (see Note 20) — 2,041 2,041
Balance at December 31, 2011 B £3,472 P3,472
Balance at January 1, 2010 B P2,896 £2.896
Reversals of previous year’s provision - (1,465) (1,465)
Balance at December 31, 2010 - P1,431 R1,431
Balance at January 1, 2009 R173 P2,601 R2,774
Provision for the year (see Note 20) — 295 295
Reversals of previous year’s provision (173) (173)
Balance at January 1, 2010 P P2,896 P2.896
Land and Development Costs
This account consists of land and development costs for the following projects:
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Greater Rockwell (see Note 15) £3,538,994 3,001 P—
The Grove 1,204,392 1,591,757 1,445,268
Edades 250,233 838,630 577,660
One Rockwell — 172,884 64,911
Others 590,974 12,996 13,920
P5,584,593 22,619,268 £2,101,759
Estimated costs to complete these projects follow:
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Greater Rockwell £17,096,737 P£20,632,730 P
The Grove 4,086,532 9,727,998 10,184,018
Edades 3,595,256 4,088,833 4,349,804
One Rockwell <= 784,820 3,173,382
224,778,525 P35,234,381 P17,707,204
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“Greater Rockwell” is the Company’s newest residential condominium project. This project will
be constructed along J. P. Rizal, Makati City, just adjacent to Rockwell Center and will be
launched in 2012 (see Note 15).

“The Grove” by Rockwell, located in Pasig City, is a mid-rise residential condominium
community project.

“Edades” is a residential condominium project within the Rockwell Center in Makati City.

In 2011, other land and other development cost mainly pertains to a residential project in Quezon
City, which the Company plans to launch in 2012.

Advances to contractors, shown separately in the consolidated statements of financial position,
mainly pertain to advances related to the development of “The Grove” and “Edades® projects.

Specific borrowing costs capitalized as part of development costs amounted to 175.1 million,
P135.2 million and 35.3 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Capitalization rates used
are 7.9%, 7.8% and 7.5% in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Amortization of discount on
retention payable capitalized as part of development costs amounted to B31.9 million, P2.8 million
and P24.8 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 17).

Total cash received from pre-selling activities for “The Grove Phase 2 and Phase 3” and “Edades”
projects amounted to P283.8 million, P741.0 million and B343.2 million as of December 31,
2011and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively. These are shown under “Deposits from pre-
selling of condominium units” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

In 2011, development costs amounting to £392.3 million and P30.2 million were reclassified to
investment property and property and equipment accounts, respectively (see Notes 11 and 13).

Available-for-Sale Investments

This account consists of:

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

Shares - quoted P258,920 P274,740 £241,600
Shares - unquoted 3,308 3,308 3,308
P262,228 P278,048 P244,908

Available-for-sale quoted equity shares

These consist of investments in RLCI shares (proprietary and ordinary - B251.5 million as of
December 31, 2011, P267.2 million as of December 31, 2010 and P235.8 million as of

January 1, 2010) and Manila Polo Club shares (B7.4 million as of December 31, 2011,

P7.5 million as of December 31, 2010 and R5.8 million as of January 1, 2010). The investment in
RLCI substantially consists of proprietary Class A and Class B shares. The fair value of these
quoted debt securities and equity shares is determined by reference to published price quotations
in an active market.

On May 12, 1999, the Company entered into an agreement with RLCI for the assignment of the
facilities and the related condominium certificates of title on the premises amounting to

R400.0 million, in exchange for advances convertible into 1,000 Class A and 500 Class B common
shares of stock of RLCI with a par value of B1,000 per share. As of December 31,2011 and 2010,
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and January 1, 2010, a portion of the advances have been converted to 655 Class A and 200 Class
B common shares. The remaining advances, which were convertible into fixed number of equity
shares, are already treated as available-for-sale financial assets since PAS 32 requires that
financial instruments be classified in accordance with their substance and not their legal form.

The movement in the unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments is as follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Unrealized gain (loss) at beginning of year P27,409 (P2,686) (P3,986)
Fair value change of available-for-sale
investments recognized in other
comprehensive income - net of tax effect
of £1.5 million in 2011, £3.0 million in
2010 and nil in 2009 (14,238) 30,095 1,300
Unrealized gain (loss) at end of year P13,171 B27,409 (P2,686)

Available-for-sale investments - unquoted equity shares

Unquoted equity securities consist mainly of investments in Meralco preferred shares, which do
not have a quoted market price, hence, valued at cost. These shares were issued to the Company
when Meralco meters were connected and will only be disposed of upon termination of service.
As of financial reporting date, the Company has no plans of disposing the unquoted equity
securities.

10.

Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

Prepaid costs (see Notes 4, 15 and 20) P279,584 P279,645 P252,596
Input value-added tax (VAT) (see Note 15) 119,900 206,033 142,166
Refundable deposits 17,388 15,792 19,737
Others 30,424 46,399 52,575
P447,296 P547,869. P467,074

. Investment Properties

This account consists of:

December 31, 2011
Buildings and

Land Improvements Total
At January 1, 2011, net of accumulated
depreciation P1,741,816 P2,711,689 $4,453,505
Additions - 19,890 19,890
Reclassification from land and development
costs (see Note 8) 129,028 263,284 392,312
Depreciation (see Note 20) ~ (134,539) (134,539)

At December 31, 2011, net of accumulated
depreciation P1,870,844 £2,860,324 P4,731,168
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December 31,2011

Buildings and

Land Improvements Total
At January 1, 2011:
Cost P1,741,816 3,892,492 5,634,308
Accumulated depreciation — (1,180,803) (1,180,803)
Net carrying amount P1,741.816 £2,711,689 24,453,505
At December 31, 2011:
Cost #£1,870,844 B4,175,666 6,046,510
Accumulated depreciation — (1,315,342) (1,315,342)
Net carrying amount P1,870,844 $2,860,324 £4,731,168
December 31, 2010
Buildings and
Land Improvements Total
At January 1, 2010, net of accumulated
depreciation P1,741,816 P2,759,736 P4,501,552
Additions - 83,810 83,810
Depreciation (see Note 20) (131,857) (131,857)
At December 31, 2010, net of accumulated
depreciation B1.741.816 £2.711,689 £4,453,505
At January 1, 2010:
Cost P1,741,816 P3,808,682 R5,550,498
Accumulated depreciation - (1,048,946) (1,048,946)
Net carrying amount P1,741,816 P2,759,736 P4,501,552
At December 31, 2010:
Cost 1,741,816 P3,892,492 5,634,308
Accumulated depreciation - (1,180,803) (1,180,803)
Net carrying amount 1,741,816 P2,711,689 P4,453,505
January 1, 2010 |
Buildings and
Land Improvements Total
At January 1, 2009, net of accumulated
depreciation 1,741,816 P2,864,742 £4,606,558
Additions (see Note 12) — 661,882 661,882
Reclassification from construction in progress
(see Note 12) - 1,444,764 1,444,764
Reclassification to investment in joint venture
(see Note 12) - (2,055,043) (2,055,043)
Reclassification to property and equipment
(see Note 13) — (27,422) (27,422)
Reclassification to land and development
costs (see Note 8) - (4,660) (4,660)
Depreciation (see Note 20) - (124,527) (124,527)
At January 1, 2010, net of accumulated
depreciation P1,741,816 B2.759,736 P4,501,552
At January 1, 2009:
Cost P1,741,816 3,789,160 B5,530,976
Accumulated depreciation - (924.418) (924,418)
Net carrying amount 1,741,816 P2,864,742 24,606,558
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January 1, 2010
Buildings and
Land Improvements Total
At January 1, 2010:
Cost 21,741,816 P3,808,682 P5,550,498
Accumulated depreciation — (1,048,946) (1,048,946)
Net carrying amount P1,741,816 P2,759,736 P4,501,552

Investment properties are valued at cost. Investment properties consist of the “Power Plant” Mall
(P3.4 billion as of December 31, 2011 and B3.5 billion as of December 31, 2010 and January 1,
2010), other investment properties held for lease within the Rockwell Center (B520.1 million as of
December 31, 2011, £135.6 million as of December 31, 2010 and R111.0 million as of January 1,
2010) and land held for appreciation (B852.5 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and
January 1, 2010). As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, unamortized
borrowing costs capitalized as part of investment properties amounted to P252.1 million,

P261.1 million and £270.1 million, respectively. No borrowing costs were capitalized starting
2001.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, land with a carrying value of
P332.2 million is pledged as one of the collaterals for the interest-bearing loans (see Note 14).

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, investment in the “Power Plant” Mall
was partially used as collateral for interest-bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 14).

Lease income earned from investment properties amounted to B657.9 million, P603.6 million and
P560.3 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Direct operating expenses incurred
amounted to P287.5 million, P243.9 million and 267.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

The aggregate fair value of the Company’s mall amounted to 6.3 billion, 5.9 billion and

£5.2 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively. The aggregate
fair value of other investment properties held for lease within the Rockwell Center and land held
for appreciation amounted to 2.6 billion, 2.1 billion and 1.8 billion as of December 31, 2011
and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively.

The fair value was determined by independent professionally qualified appraisers. The fair value
represents the amount at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing
buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm’s length transaction at the date of valuation.

The value of the mall was arrived at through the use of the “Income Approach.” The “Income
Approach or Income Capitalization Approach” considers income and expense data relating to the
property being valued and estimates it through a capitalization process. Capitalization relates
income (usually a net income figure) and a defined value type by converting an income into a
value estimate. This process may consider direct relationships (known as capitalization rates),
yield or discount rates (reflecting measures of return on investment), or both.
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The value of other investment properties held for lease within the Rockwell Center and land held
for appreciation was arrived at through the use of the “Market Data Approach.” “Market Data
Approach” is based on the assumption that no prudent purchaser will buy more than what it will
cost him to acquire an equally desirable substitute parcel or site. This approach is primarily based
on sales and listings, which are adjusted for time of sale, location, and general characteristics of
comparable lots in the neighborhood where the subject lot is situated.

The useful lives of the buildings and improvements are 5-35 years.

12.

Investment in Joint Venture

Project Development Agreement

On March 18, 2008, the Parent Company entered into a Project Development Agreement with
Meralco, a shareholder, to construct a Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) Building at the
Meralco Compound in Ortigas Center. Meralco, the landowner, agreed to contribute the use of the
land and R3.0 million which in aggregate shall be equivalent to 30% of the project contribution
while the Parent Company agreed to shoulder the construction cost and to contribute £7.0 million
which in aggregate shall be equivalent to 70% of the project contribution. Upon completion of the
construction, Meralco and the Parent Company shall divide and allocate ownership of the BPO
Building in proportion to their respective contribution.

Prior to the completion of the BPO Building, cost incurred related to the construction of the BPO
Building was recorded as “Construction in progress” and then eventually reclassified to
investment properties upon completion in July 2009. On the same date, by virtue of the Joint
Venture (JV) Agreement, the investment property was then eventually reclassified to Investment
in joint venture. Accordingly, the ownership of the BPO Building was allocated and distributed to
the Parent Company and Meralco in proportion to their respective contribution.

JV Agreement
On March 25, 2008, the Parent Company entered into a 25-year JV Agreement with Meralco to

form an unincorporated and registered JV (70% for the Parent Company and 30% for Meralco),
referred to as “unincorporated JV.” Under the JV Agreement, the parties agreed to pool their
allocated areas in the above BPO Building upon completion of the building, including the right to
use the land (described in the Project Development Agreement), and to operate and manage the
combined properties for lease or any similar arrangements to third parties under a common
property management and administration. Consequently, the Parent Company’s contribution to
the unincorporated JV is presented as “Investment in joint venture” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

In accordance with the terms of the JV Agreement, the Parent Company acts as the Property
Manager of the unincorporated JV. Management fees recognized by the Parent Company, which
is shown as part of “Others” account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
amounted to 0.9 million, 0.8 million and R0.5 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The unincorporated JV will be managed and operated in accordance with the terms of the JV
agreement and with the Property Management Plan provided for in the JV Agreement.

On November 25, 2009, Meralco and the Parent Company agreed to revise the sharing of earnings
before depreciation and amortization to 80% for the Parent Company and 20% for Meralco until
2014 or until certain operational indicators are reached, whichever comes first. Sharing of
depreciation and amortization is proportionate to their contribution.
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The unincorparated IV started commercial operations in July 2009,

Share in the joint venlure's statement of financial position:

December 31, December 31, Janwary 1,

2011 2010 2010

Currenl assets P323.502 B173,452 P49.143
Moncurrent assets 1,898,669 1,990,461 2027252
Current liabilities 50,223 83,977 29.79]
Moncurrent liabilities 09,146 56,685 22,426
Equity P2,103,102 £2.023241 B2.024,178

Share in the joint venture's revenue and expenses:

2011 2010 2009

{One Year) {One Year) {Six Months)

Revenue B206,517 P119,199 P12.65]
General and administrative expenses 44,454 17,934 16,065
Depreciation expense 82,202 £2.202 34,451
Share in net income (foss) P79.561 (#937) (P37,865)

The carrying value of the Company’s investment in joint venture consists of?

December 31, [December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

[nvestment cost F1062,043 2 062,043 P2062,043
Accumulated share in net income (losses); o

Balance at beginning of the year {38,802) (37.865) -
Share in net income {losses) 79,861 (237) {37.865)
Balance at end of vear 41,059 (38,802) {37.865)

Carrving value B2,103,102 P2023,241 2,024,178

. Property and Equipment

This account consists of:

December 31, 2011

Office
Furniture
Buildings and and Other Transportation
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Tutal
Cosi
Al January | £20.852 P277,132 P313,309 Fio4.491 £1,215,784
Additions - 1625 30,325 13,156 63,109
Reclassifications from land
and development costs
{sec Mote 8) oy 30,171 = o 30,171
Lisposals - = (52.405) - [52.405)
Al December 31 20,852 317,931 800,229 117,647 1,256,659
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amuortizatisn
Al January | - 159,336 533,120 TE9 T 475
Deprecivion and amortization
{see Note 201) - 9,405 74305 11,390 95,190
Disposals - - (52,405) = (52,405)
Al December 31 - 168,741 555,110 RS, 409 B12,260

Met Book Value @i
December 31 P20.852 Bl4%, 190 B25,11Y £19,218 P444,399
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December 31, 2010
CHifice
Fumiture
Buildings and and Other  Transportation
Land  Improvements Equipment Equipment Toal
Cost
At January 1 P20 852 B253 040 PT11,08T B0 ,655 P1,087,534
Additions - 23,192 102,232 9,735 135,149
Disposals - - = {6, 899 {6,899}
At December 31 20,852 217,132 813,309 104,491 1,215,784
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
At January 1 - 152,235 462,072 69,521 683 828
Depreciation and amortization
{see Note 20) - 7101 71,048 9,051 87,200
Disposals = - = (1,553} (1,553}
At December 31 - 159,336 533,120 77019 T69.475
Net Book Value at
December 31 #2852 - #117,7%6 B280, 189 P27.472 P46, 3049
January 1, 2010
Office
Furniture
Buildings and and Other  Transportation
Land  Improvements Equipment Equipment Teal
Cuost
At January 1, 2009 P20 452 B226,340 Pa6S,564 BEO.OIS 1,001,774
Reclassification from
investment properties
[sce Motz 11) - 27422 - - 21412
Additions - 178 45,530 18,126 63,834
Disposals - N (5,489 [5.49%6)
At January 1, 2010 20,852 253,940 711087 101,655 1,087,534
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization .
At January 1, 2009 - 146,978 402,841 61,563 611,382
Depreciation and amortization
[soe Mote 20) - 5,257 59132 10,054 74,583
Disposals — - (1) (2,136} {2.137)
At January 1, 2010 = 152,235 462,072 659,521 683,828
Net Book Value at
Januvary 1, 2010 #20,852 #101,705 #2149 015 P32.134 P43, 706
14. Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings
This account consists of:
December 31,  December 31, January 1,
Effective Interest Rate 2011 2000 2010
Current
Corporale noles B.8% fixed in 2010 and 2009 [ 1,580,000 #280,000
Peso-denominated loans from 20112 7.5% fixed, 4.5% floating
vartous local banks and and =yr PDST-F plus 2%,
financial institutions 2010 and 2009: 8.5% fixed,
L-yr PDST-F plus 1.5%,
J-month PDXST-F plus 2% -y
PDST-F plus 2% 178418 1,152,977 480,903
BITR 418 B2.732.977 BT60,%03
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December 31, December 31, Junuary 1,
Effective Interest Rate 2011 2010 2000
MNoncurrem
Corporate netes 7.3% fixed in 2001 and 8.8% fixed
in 2009 #£2 500,000 B B1SR0, 000
Peso-denominated loans from 20112 7.5% fixed, 2010: 8.5%
variows local banks and fixed, l=yr POST-F plus 2%,
linancial institulions 200K 8.5% fixed, 1-yr PDST-F
plus 1.5%, 3-month PDST-F
plus 2%:; 1-yr PDET-F plus 2% 108,954 24065 S7E.890
608,954 290,691 2. 158,899
Less unamenized loan
transaciion cosis
[see Mote 200) 20,716 7451 10384
£2,548,23% PI83.240 $I 148,515

Comorate Noles
On July 19, 2007, the Parent Company entered into a Fixed Rate Corporate MNotes Facility

Agreement (“the Agreement”™) with First Metro Investment Corporation and Philippine
Commercial Capital, Inc. (Joint Issue Managers and Lead Underwriters), Metropolitan Bank and
Trust Company - Trust Banking Group {Facility Agent and Collateral Trustee), and Philippine
Commercial Capital, Inc. - Trust and Investment Group (Paying Agent) for a 2.0 billion fixed
rate corporate notes (“the Notes™) for the purpose of financing the development of the BPO
Building located in the Meralco compound (see Note 12). The Notes are comprised of Tranche 1
and Tranche 2. each amounting to B1.0 billion. Tranche | has been fully availed in August 2007,
Tranche 2 was availed of on Febroary 28, 2008 and July 30, 2008, each amounting to P05 billion,
The Caorporate Note amounting 1o 1.4 billion is payable in 20 quarterly payments starting August
2009 and the £0.6 billion balance is payable lumpsum at maturity in August 2014,

Interest is lixed up to maturity at 75 bps over ihe seven-year PDST-F, grossed-up for Gross
Receipts Tax (GRT).

As of December 31, 2010, the Parent Company was in the process of negotiating for the pre-
termination of the Corporate Notes. In February 2001, the Parent Company pre-terminated the
entire outstanding principal amount of the Corporate Notes, Accordingly, such loan was classified
as a current liability in the 2010 consolidated statement of financial position. The pre-termination
was then financed by a bridge loan.

In April 2001, the Parent Company entered into a new Fixed Rate Corporate Notes Facility
Agreement with First Metro Investment Corporation, PNB Capital and Investment Corporation
(Joint Lead Arrangers), Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company - Trust Banking Group {Facility
Agent and Collateral Trustee), and Philippine National Bank - Trust banking Group (Paying
Agent) for a 4.0 billion fixed rate corporale notes (“the Notes™) for the purpose of financing the
acquisition of properties for development and to refinance certain obligations of the Company,
The Motes are comprised of Tranche 1 and Tranche 2, amounting to 825 billion and #1.5 billion,
respectively. Tranche | has been availed of in April 2011, Tranche 2 will be availed in April
2012, The Corporate Note is payable in 22 quarterly payments starting January 2013 until April
2018, Under the terms of the Corporate Notes, the Parent Company may, at its option and without
premium and penalty, redeem the Corporate Notes in whole or in part, subject to the conditions
stipulated in the agreement. The embedded early redempiion and prepayment oplions are clearly
and closely related to the host debt contract; thus, do not require 1o be bifurcated and accounted
lor separately in the host contract,
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Interest is fixed up to maturity at a rate per annum equal to the Benchmark Rate plus 0.65% plus
GRT.

Covenants, The new Agreement contains, among others, covenants regarding incurring additional
debt and dividend, to the extent that such will result in a breach of the required debt-to-equity ratio
and current ratio. As of December 31, 2011, the Parent Company has complied with these
covenants (see Note 27).

Loans from Various Local Banks and Financial Institutions
Peso denominated loans from various local banks and financial institutions consist of bridge
facilities mostly payable by the end of 2012 and a term loan payable by December 2014,

All interest-bearing loans and borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and
January 1, 2010 (excluding unsecured loans of B100.0 million as of December 31, 2011} are
secured by assignment of One Rockwell and The Grove receivables with gross undiscounted
amounts of B0.2 billion, 1.1 billion and B0.8 billion, respectively (see MNote 7, a parcel of land
and Morlgage Participation Certificates amounting to B2.5 hillion, P1.6 billion and 21.9 billion,
respectively, on a Mortgage Trust Indenture (MTI) and its amendments and supplements over the
Power Plant Mall (see Note 11). As of February 28, 2012, the Parent Company is in the process
of increasing the collateral value of the MTI from B3.0 billion to B4.3 billion.

The repayments of loans based on existing terms are scheduled as follows:

2012 P278,418
2013 509118
2014 508,927
2015 454,545
2016 onwards 1,136,364

P2.887,372

Loan Transaction Costs. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 20110, loan
transaction costs consisting of documentary stamp tax and underwriting fees on the corporate
notes were capitalized and presented as a deduction from the related loan balance.

The movements in the balance of the capitalized loan transaction costs are as follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

Balance at beginning of year B7,451 B10,384 P12,854

Addition during the year 24,469 - -
Write-off of loan transaction costs an

pre-terminated loans (see Note 200 (6,991) = -

Amaorization during the year (see Note 20) (4,213) (2,933) (24700

Balance at end of vear B20,716 P7.451 10,384




15.

Installment Pavable

In Movember 2011, the Parent Company entered into a Deed of Sale with Futura Realty, Inc, for
the purchase of land for development adjacent to the Rockwell Center. This will house the latest
residential condominium project of the Company called “Greater Rockwell™ Project (see Note 8).

Under the Deed of Sale, the Parent Company will pay for the cost of the land in installment until
year 20015 and a one-time payment in year 2020, Schedule of payments of the remaining
installment payable based on undiscounted amounts are as follows:

June 2012 B792,130
June 2013 T99.755
June 20114 To9.755
June 2015 TO0. 755
June 2020 653,799
Total B3,847,194

The installment payable and the corresponding land held for development were recorded at present
value using the discount rate of 8%. Accretion of interest expense for the year ended

December 31, 2011 amounted to £33 8 million and was capitalized as part of land and
development costs (see Mote 8).

As of December 31, 2011, the carrying value of the installment payable amounted to B3.0 billion.

Installment payable is secured by Stand-By Letters of Credit (SBLC) from Metropolitan Bank and
Trust Company and First Metro Investment Corporation totaling P2.4 billion. These SBLC
provides for a cross default provision wherein the SBLC shall automatically be due and payable in
the event the Parent Company s other obligation (see Note 14) is not paid when due or a default in
any other agreement shall have occurred, entitling the holder of the obligation 1o cause such
obligation 10 become due prior to its stated maturity. Unamortized prepaid premium on the SBLC
as of December 31, 2011 amounting to B20.1 million is presented as part of “Prepaid cosis™ under
“Other current assets™ account in the 2011 consolidated statement of financial condition

(see Mote 10).

The related deferred input VAT amounting to #3273 million, net of current portion of

#83.5 million (see Note 10, is recognized as part of “Other noncurrent assets™ account in the 2011
consolidated statement of financial position. This deferred input VAT will be claimed against
outpul VAT upon payment of the related instaliment payable.

. Trade and Other Pavables

This account consists oft

December 31, December 31, Januvary 1,

2011 2010 2010

Trade P132,042 P106,642 P84,715
Accrued project costs 640,654 340,297 58,882
Accrued taxes 251,481 134,042 247,330
Deferred output VAT 207,216 218,337 T.630
Accrued expenses 164,966 93,933 117,309

{Forward)
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December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Acerued interest P68,631 p51,212 BF28.487
Due ta related party (see Note 24) 18,733 14,281 21,145
Accrued marketing and promotions 13,798 11,452 13,408
Accrued producers’ share 10,356 13,329 7,736
Excess collections over recognized
receivables (sec Note 4) 418,815 185,499 -
Current portions of
Retention payable (see Nate 17) 228,432 17,928 96,119
Security deposits (see Note 17) 108,126 146,557 123,251
Deferred lease income (see Note 17) 49,544 27,384 26,012
B2,312,794 #1,360,943 BEG62,024

Trade payables and accrued project costs are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on a
30-day term.

Accrued taxes mainly consist of transfer fees payable and taxes payable other than income tax.
Accrued expenses mainly consist of accruals for general and administrative expenses.

Excess collections over recognized receivables pertain to “Edades™ and “The Grove™ projects.

. Deposits and Other Liabilities

This account consists of:
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 201010 2010

Security deposits - net of current portion

of #108.1 millien in 2001, P146.6 million

in 20010 and P123.3 million in 2009

[see Mote 16) P110,533 B57,402 B72,525
Retention payable - net of current portion

of #228.4 million in 2011, £17.9 million

in 2010 and P96.1 million in 2009

{sce Mote 16) 093273 183,887 111,391
Deferred lease income - net of current portion

of P49.5 million in 2011, 227.4 million

in 2010 and #26.0 million in 2009

(see Note 16) 31,334 49,581 45,881
Customers® deposits 13,298 11,231 13,336
Dthers 3,001 2,099 9,204

P251,439 P305,100 P252,427

Security deposits mainly consist of the four months deposits paid by mall tenants at the beginning
of the lease term, to be refunded at the end of the contract.

Retention payable is the portion of the amount billed by contractors that is being withheld as

security in case the Company incurs costs during the defects and liability period, which is one year
after a project’s completion. This is subsequently released to the contractors afier the said period.
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As discussed in Mote 4, the Company uses discounted cash flow analysis to measure the fair value
of retention payable. The resulting difference between the transaction price and fair value at
initial recognition is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as a reduction
from “Land and development costs™. The retention pavable is carried at amortized cost using
effective interest method. The amortization of discount on retention payable is capitalized as par
of development costs while the related project’s construction is in progress (see Mote 8),

The following table shows a reconciliation of unamortized discount on retention payable as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2000,

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

Balance at beginning of year P34,269 21,7068 B18.346
Additions 10,569 15,310 28,182
Amortization during the vear {see Mote §) (31,851 (2,E81%) (24,7607
Balance at end of year F121,987 34,269 B21,768

Deferred lease income pertains to two months advance remt included in the initial billing 10 mall
tenants, which shall be applied to the monthly rental at the end of the lease term.

Customers’ deposits represent nonrefundable reservation fees paid to the Company by prospective
buyers which are 1o be applied against the receivable upon recognition of revenue,

. Equity

a. Capital Stock

Mumber

of Shares Amaount

Authorized
Common - B1 par value 8 290,000,000 PR 200000
Preferred - PO.OL par value 11,000,000,000 110,000
19, 890,000,000 BO.D00,000

Issued

Commaon - #1 par value 0,228,382,344 P6,228,382
Preferred - PO.O1 par value 2,750,000,000 27,500
5,978,382 344 #6,255,882

The preferred shares are of equal rank, preference and priority with the common shares and
are identical in all respects regardless of series, except as to the issue value which may be
specified by the BOD from time to time. [t has voting rights and are non-participating in any
other or further dividends beyond that specifically on such preferred shares. Each preferred
share shall not be convertible to common shares. Other features of the preferred shares shall
be at the discretion of the BOD at the time of such issuance. All preferred shares currently
outstanding eam 6% cumulative dividend per annum. On January 31, 2012, the Company
fully redeemed these preferred shares at par value, including dividends in arrears of

B4.1 million, On February 28, 2012, the BOD authorized the reissuance of these preferred
shares at a later date.
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b. Dividends

On January 16, 2012, the BOD approved the declaration of dividends for preferred shares at
6% cumulative per annum amounting to 4.1 million.

On July 31, 2009, during the regular meeting, the BOD approved the declaration of dividends
for preferred shares at 6% cumulative per annum amounting to B1.65 million. In addition, the
BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend for common shares amounting to B200.0
million (P0.032 per share) to the stockholders of record based on their subscription as of

July 31, 2009, Payments were made in two equal tranches on September 30, 2009 and
Movember 30, 2009,

19, Interest Income

This account consists of:

2011 2000 2000
Imterest income from:
Amortization of unearned interest on

trade receivables (sec Note 7) $491,789 B549 882 B293313
Interest and penalty charges 11,247 15,097 18,968
In-house financing 3479 4,435 5,063

Cash in banks and short-term investments
{see Note &) 10,574 1,540 4975
B517,089 £570,954 B322.319

20. Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Included in:
Cost of real estate (see Note 11) P134,539 P131,857 P124 527
General and administrative expenses
{see Mote 13) 95,190 £7.,200 74,583
P229,729 £219,057 199,110

General and administrative expenses pertain to the following businesses:

2011 2010 2009

Feal estate P484,660 432,139 #381,979
Cinema 160,079 150,011 120,545
644,739 P582,150 B502,524
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Real Estate

2011 2010 2009
Personnel (sce Motes 21 and 22) P125,867 93,305 #107.719
Taxes and licenses 102,105 73,601 76,651
Depreciation and amortization {see Note 13} 88,807 8L917 70,788
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 25,887 23.630 21.403
Marketing and promations 18,503 13,365 18,452
Uhilities (see MNote 24) 14,937 14,806 11,195
Professional fees 12,676 R.813 12,454
Insurance 9,250 6,606 5,266
Fuel and oil 7,183 4,209 3,199
[Dues and subscriptions 6,759 4281 9,272
Comtracted services 4,969 6,397 5,174
Materials and supplies 2,389 2279 2127
Provision for doubtful accounts (see MNote 7) 2,041 - 295
Security services 1,951 1,970 1,894
Write-off of other receivables - 21.029 -
Others 61,330 70,921 36,090
P454,0060 P432,139 B381.979
Cinema
2011 2010 2009
Producers® share B84,611 PEO G40 P48, 406
Ltilities (sec Mote 24) 24,446 22,231 19,758
Amusement tax 14,905 13,008 22,372
Snack bar 11,033 R 8,766
Personnel (see Notes 21 and 22) T.465 7,766 7313
Depreciation and amortization (see Mote 13) 6,383 5,283 3795
Contracted services 4,530 4,549 3,795
Advertising 2,751 2,852 2919
Others 3,955 4,672 3,821
B160,079 2150011 £#120,945
Selling expenses are comprised of?
2011 20010 2009
Commissions and amortization of prepaid
cosls (see Notes 4 and 10) 209,800 B155,291 B114,322
Markeding and promaotions 49,253 25,739 25,840
Personnel (see Motes 21 and 22} 31,506 29 400 19,585
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 1,711 1,234 203
Oithers 757 426 604
P293,027 P212,000 PlLG1, 164
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Interest expense is comprised of?

_40 -

2011 2010 2009
Interest expense on loans (see Note 14) B171,355 P150,935 P76,612
Write-off of loan transaction costs on pre-
terminated loans (see Note 14) 6,991 -
Amaortization of loan transaction costs
(see Note 14) 4,213 2,933 2470
P182,550 P153,368 B70,082
21. Personnel Expenses
Personnel expenses included in general and administrative expenses and selling expenses are
comprised of;
2011 2010 2009
Salaries and wages (see Mote 20) Bl148,408 Pl114,733 B110,081
Pension costs (see Note 22) 16,370 15,738 24,540
P164,338 ?130,471 #134,621

22,

Pension Costs

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all regular and

permanent employees.

The following tables summarize the components of the net pension costs recognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the fund status and amounts recognized in
the consolidated statements of financial position for the plan:

Met Pensi 0515

2011 2010 2009
Current service cost B17,960 Pl14,386 B5,621
Interest cost 13,134 11,643 5,833
Amortization of past service cost 6,134 6,134 17,611
Expected return on plan assets (20,864) (16,425) (4,115)
Net actuarial gain recognized - - (410}
Met pension cost B16,370 B15,738 £24,540
Actual return on plan assets P10,006 44,387 20,633
Pension Asset
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Present value of benefit obligation B218,170 Pl6E, 164 P126,010
Fair value of plan assets (212,410 (208,637) {164.250)
Unrecognized past service cost (17,173} (23,307 (29.441)
Unrecognized net actuarial gain (loss) (22,069 13,928 2,091
Pension assel (P33,482) {P49,852) (P65,550)
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The changes in the present value of benefit obligation are as follows:

December 31,

[December 31,

January 1,

2011 2010 2010
Defined benefit obligation al beginning
of year Plo8,164 P126,010 B50,154
Current service cost 17.966 14,386 5,621
Tmerest cost 13,134 11,643 5,833
Past service cost = - 39,693
Actuarial loss due to:
Change in assumptions 27,367 15,132 18,022
Experience adjusiments (2,228) 9493 6,687
Benefits paid {6,233) i -
Defined benefit abligation at end of year P218,170 P168, 164 P126,010
The changes in the fair values of plan assets of the Company are as follows:
December 31, December 31, lanuary 1,
2011 20140 2010
Fair values of plan assets at beginning of year F208,637 Fl64,250 P&2,295
Expected return an plan asscts 20,564 16,425 4,115
Actual contributions - - 61,322
Unrecognized net actuarial zain (loss) {10,858) 27,962 16,51%
Benefits paid (6,233) - -
Fair values of plan assets al end of year B212,410 P208.637 Pl64,250
Movements in unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) are as follows:
December 31, December 31, January 1.
2011 2010 2010
Met cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain
(loss) at beginning of vear F13,928 BZ.091 10,652
Actuarial gain (less) due to:
Change in assumptions {27.367) (15,132} {18,022y
Experience adjustments 2,218 [993) (6,687)
Met actuarial pain recognized - - (410}
Actuarial gain (loss) on plan asseis (10,858) 27,962 16,518
Met cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain
(loss) at end of year (F22,069) B13,928 B2.091

The Company does not expect to contribute to its pension plan in 2012 as it 1s still overfunded,

The major categories of plan assets as percentage of the fair value of tofal plan assets are as

follows:

December 31, December 31, January |1,
2011 20140 2010

Investments in;
CGovernment securilies 37.15% 33.24% 37.53%
Loans and debt instruments 10,93% 12.75% 9.33%
Other securities 51.92% 54.01% 53.14%
100.00%% 100,00% 100.00%
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The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The principal assumptions used as of January 1, 2011, 2010 and 2009 in determining pension cost
obligation for the Company's plans are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 6.03% 9.24% 11.63%
Future salary rate increases 10.00%% 10.00% 10.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 1000 %% 10.00% 10,040

Discount rate prevailing as of December 31, 2011 is 7.81%.

The amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Defined benefit chligation F118,170 PI6E, 164 Bl26,010 B50,154 B36,772

Plan assets 212,410 208,637 164,250 82,295 47,437
Experience adjustment on

defined benefit

obligation (2,228) 993 6,687 {2,156} 724
Experience adjustment on

plan assets (10,858) 27,692 16,518 (9.911) 2,697

23.

Income Taxes

The components of provision for income tax for the years ended December 31 follow:

2011 2010 2009

Current income fax F430,715 F272.467 B200,740
Deferred income tax (140,438) 24,753 77.002
$290,277 B207.220 B277.742

The current provision for income tax represents the regular corporate income tax (RCIT).

For income tax purposes, full revenue recognition is applied when greater than 25% of the selling
price has been collected in the year of sale, otherwise, the installment method is applied.

The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, and January 1, 2010 shown in the consolidated statements of financial position are as
follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Deferred tax liabilities:

Capitalized interest BA2,084 P85,201 BES3IE
Unrealized gain on real estate 25,228 145,170 113,083
Owerfunded pension costs 10,045 14,956 19,677
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 1,661 13,721 17,668

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
investments 1,463 1,045 -
Derivative assels - 210 —
Total {Carried Forward) 120,481 262,303 238,746
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December 31, [ecember 31, January |,
2011 2000 20010
Total {Brought Forward) P120,481 B262 303 P238,746
Deferred 1ax assets:
Deferred lease income 24,156 22978 21,190
Linamortized past service cost 16,332 19,121 21,909
Other employee bencfits 6,953 6,259 7,784
Allowance for doubtful accounts and
others 4,164 3,049 3,489
Derivative liahilitics - - 1.277
51,605 51,407 55,649
POS.8T6 P210,806 P153,097

The reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to effective income tax rate as shown in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income is summarized as follows:

011 2010 Eﬂﬂi

Statutory income tax rate 30.0% 30.0%, I0.0%
Additions 1o income tax resulting rom:

Share in net (income) [osses of joint

veniure {2.0) - 1.3

MNondeductible expenses 0.1 (.6 0.5

Montaxable income and others (4.0) (3.5) (1.3)
Effective income tax rate 24.1% 27.1% 30.5%

24,

Related Parly Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ahility to control, directly or indirectly, the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
commaon significant influence.

In addition o the transaction disclosed in Note 12, significant iransactions with related parties are
as follows:

a.  Gross utilities expense due to Meralco amounting 1o B326.7 million in 20011, B265.3 million in
2010 and P208.0 million in 2009 {see Note 200, Unpaid utilities expense as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, and Januvary 1, 2010 amounted to B18.7 million, #14.3 million and
£21.1 million, respectively (see Note 16); and,

b. Advances to officers and employees amounting to B9.5 million, #7.5 million and £8.9 million
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively (see Note 7).

Terms and Conditions of Transaciions with Related Parties

Furchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances at year-
end are unsecured, interesi-free, seitlement occurs in cash and collectible/payable on demand,
There have been no puarantees provided for or received for any related party receivables or
payvables. Forthe years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, the Company
has not made any provision for doubtful accounts relating to amounts owed by related parties,
This assessment is undertaken at each financial year through examination of the financial position

of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company

2011 2010 2009

Short-term employee benefits P41,790 P42,191 34,603

Post-employment pension and other benefits 9,767 9,570 16,022
Total compensation attributable to key

management personnel P51,557 P32,161 P50,625

25, Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company entered into deliverable currency forward contracts to manage its foreign currency
exposure arising from its US$ denominated receivables. As of December 31, 2010 and January 1,
2010, the Company has outstanding currency forward contracts to sell USE with an aggregate
notional amount of US$0.9 million and US$2.4 million, respectively, and weighted average
contracted forward rate of B43 88 to USS1.00 and B46.21 1o US$1.00, respectively, Outstanding
derivatives matured in 2011, The net fair value gain on the outstanding currency forward
contracts amounted to B10.4 million in 2010 and 2009,
Fair Value Changes on Derivatives
The net movements in fair value changes of all derivative instruments are as follows:
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Balance at beginning of year P699 (14,256) (F21,706)
Mark-to-market gain (loss) (304) 10,354 10,372
Fair value of settled instruments (395) (5,399) T.078
Asset (liability) at end of year P 699 (#4,256)
26. Commitments and Contingencies

Orperating Lease Commitments

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio.
These noncancellable leases have remaining terms of between two and six years. All leases
include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to
prevailing market conditions. Future minimum lease revenue follows:

2012 447,731
2013 102,920
2014 71,598
2015 17.421
2016 and after 9,090

Po4E. 760

Capital Commitments

a. The Company entered into a contract with Hilmare's Construction Corporation in 2011
covering superstructure works related to “Edades™ Project. The contract amounted to a fixed
fee of B1.9 billion, inclusive of all pertinent local and national taxes, overhead and cost of
labor and materials and all cost necessary for the proper execution of the works.
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Superstructure works commenced in 2011 and is currently onpoing. As of December 31,
2011, B165.7 million has been incurred and paid.

b, The Company entered into contract covering supersiructure works related to “The Grove™
project with Hilmare's Constrouction Corporation. The contract sum for the work amounted 1o
£1.6 billion, inclusive of all pertinent local and national taxes, overhead and cost of labor and
materials and all cost necessary for the proper execution of the work. Superstructure works
commenced in 2010 and is currently ongoing. As of December 31, 2011, total amount paid
related to this contract amounted to P739.4 million.

¢.  The Company entered into a contract with DATEM Incorporated in April 2008 for the
superstructure works of the “One Rockwell™ project. The contract amounted to a fixed fee of
£2.5 hillion, inclusive of all pertinent local and national taxes, overhead and cost of labor and
materials and all cost necessary for the proper execution of the works. Superstructure works
commenced in 2008 and was completed in December 2011, As of December 31, 2011,
£2.3 billion has been paid.

Contingencies

The Company is contingently liable for lawsuits or claims filed by third parties, which are either
pending decision by the courts or under negotiations, the outcomes of which are not presently
determinable. 11 is the opinion of management and its outside legal counsel that it is possible, bt
not probable that the lawsuits and claims will be settled. Accordingly, no provision for any
liability has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

27.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale investments, and interest-bearing loans and borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial instrumenis is to finance the Company s operations. The Company has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, refundable deposits, trade and
other payables, installment payable, retention payable and security deposits which arise directly
from its operations.

The Company also entered inlo derivative transactions, specifically foreign currency forward
contracts to sell USE. The primary purpose was to manage currency risks arising from its foreign
currency-denominated receivables from sale of condominium units.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are cash flow interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The BOD reviews and approves the policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of the changes in market interest rates, The Company’s exposure 1o the risk for
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s interest-bearing loans and
borrowings with floating interest rates,

The Company™s policy is to manage ils interest cost using a mix of lixed and variable rate debts,
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, approximately 92%, 62% and 74%,
respectively, of the Company s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest.
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The following tables set out the principal amounts, by maturity, of the Company’s interest-bearing
financial instruments.

December 31, 2011
Within More than
1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
Fixed Rate
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings £50,942 £509,118 £508,927 £1,590,909 £2,659,896
Short-term investments 328,113 - - - 328,113
Floating Rate
Interest-hearing loans
and borrowings $227,476 P P- - £227,476
December 31, 2010
Within More than
1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
Fixed Rate
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 21,626,444 P50,549 B55,017 P54,694 21,786,704
Short-term investments 258,725 - ~ - 258,725
Floating Rate
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 1,106,533 130,431 - - 1,236,964
January 1, 2010
Within More than
1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
Fixed Rate
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings £454,323 2307,560 £309,997 21,085,105 £2,156,985
Short-term investments 214,509 - — - 214,509
Floating Rate
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 306,580 456,237 - - 762,817

Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate is repriced at intervals of less than one
year. Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed until the maturity of the
instrument. The other financial instruments of the Company that are not included in the above
tables are noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s December 31, 2011 and 2010, and
January 1, 2010 income before income tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings).
There is no impact on the Company’s equity other than those already affecting the income.

2011
Increase/Decrease Effect on Income
in Basis Points Before Income Tax
Floating rate loans from
various local banks +100 (B5.22 million)
-100 5.22 million
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2010
Increase/Decrease Effect on Income
in Basis Points Before Income Tax
Floating rate loans from
various local banks +100 (#9.01 million)
-100 9.01 million
2009
Increase/Decrease Effect on Income
in Basis Points Before Tax
Floating rate loans from
various local banks +100 (#3.40 million)
-100 3.40 million

Interest expense on floating rate borrowings is computed for the year, taking into account actual
principal movements during the year, based on management’s best estimate of a +/-100 basis
points change in interest rates. There has been no change in the methods and assumptions used by
management in the above analyses.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future value of the financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As a result of the Company’s significant
marketing operations in the United States in the past, the Company’s consolidated statement of
financial position can be affected significantly by movements in the US$ exchange rates.

Foreign Currency-Denominated Assets and Liabilities

December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010

December 31, 2011

uUSS Peso USs$ Peso UsS$ Peso
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents US$70 P3,067 US$672 B29,449  US$2,034 P93,981
Trade and other receivables - = 1,714 75,137 2,706 125,025
Net foreign currency-
denominated assets US$70 B3,067 US$2,386 P104,586 US$4,740 P219,006

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, the exchange rate was P43.84 to
US$1.00, P43.84 to US$1.00 and P46.20 to US$1.00, respectively. Net foreign exchange loss
(gain) amounted to (R3.8) million, 19.4 million and 14.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

It is the Company’s policy to limit its US$-denominated receivables just to match the estimated
US$-denominated component of its development costs as well as its US$-denominated
borrowings. Also, the Company enters into deliverable currency forward contracts to manage its
foreign currency exposure.
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The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the

US$ exchange rate with respect to Peso, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010 income before income tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no impact on the Company’s equity
other than those already affecting the income.

2011
Increase/Decrease Effect on Income
in US$ Rate (in %) Before Income Tax
Foreign currency-denominated
financial assets +5% £0.15 million
5% (0.15 million)
2010
Increase/decrease Effect on Income
in US$ Rate (in %) Before Income Tax
Foreign currency-denominated
financial assets +5% P5.23 million
-5% (B5.23 million)
2009
Increase/decrease Effect on Income
in US$ Rate (in %) Before Tax
Foreign currency-denominated
financial assets and liabilities +5% P10.95 million
-5% (B10.95 million)

Foreign exchange gain or loss is computed for the year based on management’s best estimate that
the Peso-US$ conversion rate may strengthen (+5 percent) or weaken (-5 percent) using the year
end balances of dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and other
payables, interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and forward contracts. An increase in the US$
rate means a weaker peso while a decrease in the US$ rate means a stronger peso. There has been
no change in the methods and assumptions used by management in the above analyses.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will meet its obligation under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risks from its
operating activities (primarily from trade receivables and loan notes) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments.

The Company trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
Default or delinquency on the part of buyers of condominium units and club shares are being
monitored on an ongoing basis to enable the Company to determine the appropriate action -
usually, cancelling the sale and holding the units and club shares open for sale. Lease receivables
are closely monitored based on aging of the accounts. Accounts determined to be uncollectible
are recommended for write off. With regard to the other financial assets of the Company, these
are also monitored regularly with the result that the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
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Trade receivables from sale of condominium units are secured with pre-completed condominium
units. The legal title and ownership of these units will only be transferred to the customers upon
full payment of the contract price. Receivables from lease are guaranteed by security deposits,
while receivables from sale of club shares are secured by the shares held by the Company. For
other receivables, since the Company trades only with recognized third parties, there is no
requirement for collateral.

The table below summarizes the maximum exposure to credit risk of each class of financial assets
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
Cash and cash equivalents* P447,709 £320,485 £392,313
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 2,422,624 2,222,222 420,903
Lease 92,134 73,599 75,271
Sale of club shares 3,398 3,875 4,232
Advances to officers and employees 9,450 7,458 8,933
Other receivables 64,917 11,975 20,496
Derivative assets — 699 -
Available-for-sale investments:
Quoted 258,920 274,740 241,600
Unquoted 3,308 3,308 3,308
Deposits** 17,323 15,727 13,077
P3,319,783 2,934,088 21,180,133

* Excluding cash on hand amounting to P226, £221 and P211 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1,
2010, respectively.
** Presented as part of "Other current assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk because the Company trades with various
third parties.

The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial asset based on the Company’s credit
rating system.

December 31, 2011

A Rating B Rating Total
Cash and cash equivalents P447,709 P P447,709
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 1,251,979 675,199 1,927,178
Lease 61,614 28,435 90,049
Sale of club shares - - -
Advances to officers and employees 9,119 331 9,450
Other receivables 64,917 - 64,917
Available-for-sale investments:
Quoted 258,920 - 258,920
Unquoted 3,308 - 3,308

P2,097,566 £703,965 $2,801,531
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December 31, 2010

A Rating B Rating Total
Cash and cash equivalents £320,485 B £320,485
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 918,613 466,697 1,385,310
Lease 43,464 28,976 72,440
Sale of club shares - - -
Advances to officers and employees 7,458 - 7,458
Other receivables 5,568 — 5,568
Available-for-sale investments:
Quoted 274,740 — 274,740
Unquoted 3,308 - 3,308
B1,573,636 P495,673 2,069,309
January 1, 2010
A Rating B Rating Total
Cash and cash equivalents P392.313 P- B392.313
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 175,050 140,618 315,668
Lease 60,483 6,760 67,243
Sale of club shares - - -
Advances to officers and employees 8,933 - 8,933
Other receivables 17,419 — 17,419
Available-for-sale investments:
Quoted 241,600 - 241,600
Unquoted 3,308 — 3,308
£899,106 P147,378 21,046,484

For trade receivables from sale of condominium units, customers who have no history of delayed
payment are classified as having a credit rating of “A” while customers who have history of
delayed payment but is currently updated are given a credit rating of “B”.

Trade receivables from lease are classified as having a credit rating of “A” when tenants pay
within the discount period and “B” when tenants pay on or before due date.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, the analyses of the age of financial

assets are as follows:

December 31, 2011
Neither Past Due but not Impaired
Past Due Less than More than
nor Impaired 30 Days 31 to 60 Days 61 to 90 Days 90 Days Total
Cash and cash equivalents £447,935 = P P- P- £447,935
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 1,927,178 436,813 3,774 6,569 48,290 2,422,624
Lease 90,049 1,499 586 - - 92,134
Sale of club shares - - - — 3,398 3,398
Advances to officers and
employees 9,450 - - 9,450
Other receivables 64,917 - - - 64,917
Available-for-sale investments:
Quoted 258,920 - - - - 258,920
Unquoted 3,308 - - - - 3,308
Deposits = — — — 17,323 17,323
$2,801,757 £438,312 £4,360 £6,569 P£69,011 £3,320,009
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December 31,2010

MNeither Past Duie but not Impaired
Past Due Less than More than
nor Impaired 30Days 311060 Days 61 to 90 Days 90 Days Total
Cash and cash equivalents £320,706 e [ P P 320,706
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 1,385,310 524,854 46,188 28,144 237.726 2,222.222
Lease 72,440 818 341 - - 73,599
Sale of club shares - - - - 3,875 3,875
Advances to officers and
employees 7458 - - - 7,458
Other receivables 5,568 - 612 332 5,463 11,975
Available-for-sale investments:
Quoted 274,740 - - - - 274.740
Unquoted 3,308 - - - - 3,308
Deposits - - - — 15,727 15,727
$£2,069,530 B525,672 P47,141 P28.476 P262,791 £2,933610
January 1, 2010
Neather Past Due but not Jmpaired
Past Due Less than More than
nor Impaired 30Days 311060 Days 61 to 90 Days 90 Days Total
Cash and cash equivalents 392,524 P- P P P 392,524
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 315,668 61,660 14,782 10,985 17,808 420,903
Lease 67,243 6,596 1,011 59 361 75,271
Sale of club shares - - - - 4,232 4,232
Advances to officers and
employees 8,933 - - - — 8,933
Other receivables 17,419 1,910 1,107 60 - 20.496
Available-for-sale investments:
Quoted 241,600 - - - - 241,600
Unquoted 3,308 - - - - 3.308
Refundable deposits - - — -~ 13,077 13,077
£1,046,695 £70,166 216,900 PI11,104 P£35,478 £1,180,344

Financial assets are considered past due when collections are not received on due date.

Past due accounts which pertain to trade receivables from sale of condominium units and club
shares are recoverable since the legal title and ownership of the condominium units and club
shares will only be transferred to the customers upon full payment of the contract price. In case of
cancellation, the condominium units and club shares become available for sale. The fair value of
the condominium units amounted to £15.5 billion, 14.7 billion and P11.3 billion as of

December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively. The fair value of the club shares
amounted to P4.2 million, B5.4 million and 2.6 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and
January 1, 2010, respectively.

Past due accounts pertaining to lease are recoverable because security deposits and advance rent
paid by the tenants are sufficient to cover the balance in case of default or delinquency of tenants.

As of December 31, 2011, trade receivables from lease amounting to R0.2 million were subjected
to specific and collective impairment testing. In 2010 and 2009, receivables from sale of club
shares amounting to 2.2 million was assessed collectively for impairment. As a result, no
provision for impairment was made for trade receivables from lease and club shares which are
subjected to collective assessment since these assets are secured with collateral.
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Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank loans. 10%, 90% and 26% of the Company’s debt will mature in less than
one year as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively.

The liquidity risk of the Company arises from their financial liabilities. The tables below
summarized the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at December 31, 2011 and
2010, and January 1, 2010 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

December 31, 2011
Due Between
Due Within 3 and Due after
3 Months 12 Months 12 Months Total
Trade and other payables £239,510 1,043,029 P P1,282,539
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings* 184,387 290,125 3,137,621 3,612,133
Installment payable - 792,130 3,055,063 3,847,193
Retention payable** 18,429 210,003 93,273 321,705
Security deposits** 32,729 75,397 110,533 218,659
B475,055 $2,410,684 £6,396,490 £9,282,229
December 31, 2010
Due Between
Due Within 3 and Due after
3 Months 12 Months 12 Months Total
Trade and other payables P277,851 P470,555 P— R748,406
Derivative financial instruments:
Derivative payments - 39,456 - 39,456
Derivative receipts - (39,489) — (39,489)
= (33) - (33)
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings* 1,799,660 1,058,933 316,651 3,175,244
Retention payable** 1,024 16,904 183,887 201,815
Security deposits** 20,981 125,576 57,402 203,959
£2,099,516 1,671,935 B557,940 4,329,391
January 1, 2010
Due Between
Due Within 3 and Due after
3 Months 12 Months 12 Months Total
Trade and other payables £309,009 P63,901 P31,750 P404,660
Derivative financial instruments:
Derivative payments - 110,880 - 110,880
Derivative receipts — (110,904) - (110,904)
- @4) - 4)
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings* 259,771 717,047 2,566,788 3,543,606
Retention payable 3,913 92,206 111,391 207,510
Security deposits 7,697 115,554 72,525 195,776
P580,390 P988,685 B2,782,454 24,351,528

* Principal plus interest payments.

** Presented as part of “Trade and other payables” and “Deposits and other liabilities” accounts in the consolidated

statements of financial position.
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Maturity Profile of Financial Assets Held for Liguidity Purposes
The table below shows the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010:

December 31, 2011

Within Over
On Demand 30 Days 31 to 60 Days 61 to 90 Days 90 Days Total
Cash and cash equivalents P119,822 £328,113 £ P- - P447,935
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 8,926,074 680,367 111,980 68,551 318,847 10,105,819
Lease 92,134 - — - - 92,134
Available-for-sale investments — — - — 262,228 262,228
£9,138,030 21,008,480 P111,980 P68,551 P581,075  £10,908,116
December 31,2010
Within Over
On Demand 30 Days  31to60Days 61 to 90 Days 90 Days Total
Cash and cash equivalents £61,981 £258,725 B B 2 £320,706
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 4,627,095 1,744,963 153,558 93,570 177,336 6,796,522
Lease 73,599 - - - 73,599
Available-for-sale investments — — - - 278,048 278,048
P4,762,675 £2,003,688 P153,558 £93,570 P455,384 P7,468 875
January 1, 2010
Within Over
On Demand 30 Days 31 to 60 Days 61 to 90 Days 90 Days Total
Cash and cash equivalents 2178,015 2214509 B B- P £392,524
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium units 581,209 74,310 19.848 15,779 163,403 854,549
Lease 75,271 - - - — 75,271
Available-for-sale investments — — — 244 908 244 908
#8534 495 P288.819 19,848 R15.779 P4D8.311 #1,567.252

Capital Management Policy

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize shareholder value by
maintaining a healthy balance between debt and equity (capital) financing in support of its
business requirements.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010.

The Company monitors its capital adequacy using the net debt-to-equity ratio, which is interest-
bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by equity. The Company’s
policy is to limit the net debt-to-equity ratio to 0.40.

The Company is required to maintain debt-to-equity ratio as set forth in the Fixed Rate Corporate
Notes Facility Agreement. The Agreement provides for a higher debt to equity ratio than the
internal limit set by the Company (see Note 14).

2011 2010 2009
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings P2,866,656 P3,016,217 P2,909,418
Less cash and cash equivalents 447,935 320,706 392,524
Net 2,418,721 2,695,511 2,516,894
Equity 9,147,739 8,247,074 7,415,672

Net debt-to-equity ratio 0.26 0.33 0.34
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28. Financial Instruments

Fair Values

Set out below is a comparison by class of carrying values and fair values of all the Company’s
financial instruments that are carried in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010. There are no material unrecognized financial assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010.

Carrying Value Fair Value
December 31, December 31, January 1, December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010
Financial Assets
Assets at FVPL -
Derivative assets B £699 o B PB699 P
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 447,935 320,706 392,524 447,935 320,706 392,524
Trade receivables from:
Sale of condominium
units (including
noncurrent portion) 2,422,624 2,222,222 420,903 6,187,712 3,914,263 436,544
Lease 92,134 73,599 75,271 92,134 73,599 75,271
Sale of club shares 3,398 3,875 4,232 3,398 3,875 4,232
Advances to officers and
employees 9,450 7,458 8,933 9,450 7458 8,933
Other receivables* 64,917 11,975 20,496 64,917 11,975 20,496
Refundable deposits** 17,323 15,727 13,077 17,323 15,727 13,077
Auvailable-for-sale investments:
Quoted 258,920 274,740 241,600 258,920 274,740 241,600
Unquoted 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308
23,320,009 £2 934,309 P|,180,344 P7,085,097 P4,626,350 1,195,985
Carrying Value Fair Value
December 31, December 31, January 1, December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010
Financial Liabilities
Liabilities at FVPL -
Derivative liabilities P- P P4256 P- P B4256
Other Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables* 1,282,539 748,406 404,661 1,282,539 748,406 404,660
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings (including
noncurrent portion) 2,866,656 3,016,217 2,909,418 3,097,784 3,097,784 2,978,715
Installment payable 3,022,424 - 3,227,554 -
Retention payable (including
noncurrent portion) 321,705 201,815 207,510 310,193 125,774 185,741
Security deposits (including
noncurrent portion) 218,659 203,959 195,776 213,482 192,219 176489
P7,711,983 4,170,397 P3,721.621 28,131,552 B4,164,183 P3,749 862

* Carrying amounts are exclusive of statutory payables and other nonfinancial liabilities, totaling to £644,153, P420,668 and
R204,352 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, respectively.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade Receivables from Lease and Sale of Club Shares, Advances to
Officers and Employees, Other Receivables, Refundable Deposits and Trade and Other Payables.
Due to the short-term nature of transactions, the carrying values of these instruments approximate
the fair values as of financial reporting date.
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Trade Receivables from Sale of Condominium Units. The fair values of trade receivables from
sale of condominium units were calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at
prevailing credit adjusted PDEx interest rates ranging from 3.7% to 7.3% as of December 31,
2011, 3.3% to 6.5% as of December 31, 2010 and 6.5% to 8.3% as of January 1, 2010.

Available-for-Sale Investments. The fair values of quoted equity securities were determined by
reference to market bid quotes as of financial reporting date. The unquoted equity securities were
valued at cost.

Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities. The fair values were determined using forward
exchange market rates as of financial reporting date.

Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings
= Fixed Rate

The fair values of fixed rate loans were calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows at prevailing credit adjusted PDEx interest rates ranging from 3.7% to 7.2% as of
December 31, 2011, 2.8% to 6.0% as of December 31, 2010 and 6.3% to 8.4% as of
January 1, 2010.

= Floating Rate

The fair values of floating rate loans approximate the carrying values as of financial reporting
date due to the monthly and quarterly repricing of interest rates.

Installment Payable

The fair value of installment payable were calculated by discounting the expected cash flows at
prevailing credit adjusted PDEXx interest rates ranging from 3.7% to 7.4% as of December 31,
2011.

Retention Payable and Security Deposits

The fair values were calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing credit
adjusted PDEXx interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 6.8% as of December 31, 2011, 5.6% to 7.8%
as of December 31, 2010 and 6.3% to 7.4% as of January 1, 2010.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of

financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data.
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December 31,

2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value
Available-for-sale financial assets £258,920 P258,920 P 2
December 31,
2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value
Available-for-sale financial assets P274,740 P274,740 P P
Foreign exchange forward contracts 699 — 699 -
P275,439 P274,740 P699 P
January 1,
2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value
Available-for-sale financial assets £241,600 P241,600 [ P—
Liabilities measured at fair value
Foreign exchange forward contracts P4,256 P— B4,256 P

For the reporting years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of

Level 3 fair value measurements.

29.

Earnings Per Share Computation

2011 2010 2009

Net income £914,903 B801,307 £633,513
Dividends on preferred shares (1,650) (1,650) (1,650)
Net income attributable to common

shares (a) 913,253 799,657 631,863
Weighted average number of common

shares (b) 6,228,382,344 6,228,382,344 6,228,382,344
Earnings per share (a/b) £0.15 P0.13 B0.10

30.

Segment Information

PFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Company that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker.

For management purposes, the Company’s operating segments is determined to be business
segments as the risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products
and services produced. The operating businesses are organized and managed separately according
to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.
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The Company manages its operations under the following business segments:

®  Residential Development is engaged in the development, selling, and property management of

all residential projects of the Company.

»  Commercial Leasing is engaged in the leasing and other related operations in the course of the
management of commercial buildings or spaces used for retail and office leasing, including
cinema operations. Commercial buildings in its portfolio include the Power Plant Mall in
Makati City and Rockwell Business Center in Ortigas, Pasig. Other retail spaces are found at
several of the high-rise condominiums developed by the Company.

Management monitors the operating results of each business unit separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Performance is
evaluated based on net income for the year and earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation

and amortization, or EBITDA. Net income for the year is measured consistent with consolidated
net income in the consolidated financial statements. EBITDA is measured as net income excluding
depreciation and amortization, interest expense and provision for income tax.

The Company centrally manages cash and its financing requirements, income taxes and resource
allocation. Resource allocation are measured against profitability among potential investments

and made in view of the Company’s existing business portfolio.

Business Segments

The following tables present revenue, and costs and expenses information regarding the
Company’s residential development and commercial leasing business segments in 2011, 2010 and

2009:
2011
Residential Commercial

Development Leasing Total
Revenue £5,211,152 B941,545 £6,152,697
Costs and expenses (4,361,946) (256,630) (4,618,576)
Share in net income of joint venture -~ 79,861 79,861
Other income — net 3,486 = 3,486
EBITDA 852,692 764,776 1,617,468
Depreciation and amortization (229,729)
Interest expense (182,559)
Provision for income tax B (290,277)
Consolidated net income P852,692 £764,776 £914,903

2010
Residential Commercial

Development Leasing Total
Revenue P4,017,700 P866,810 P4.884,510
Costs and expenses (3,165,229) (237,867) (3,403,096)
Share in net losses of joint venture — 937) 937)
Other expenses - net (9,025) — (9,025)
EBITDA 843,446 628,006 1,471,452
Depreciation and amortization (219,057)
Interest expense (153,868)
Provision for income tax (297,220)
Consolidated net income P843,446 £629,880 £801,307
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2009
Residential Commercial

Development Leasing Total
Revenue P3,281,261 P751,943 £4,033,204
Costs and expenses (2,595,742) (206,497) (2,802,239)
Share in net losses of joint venture = (37,865) (37,865)
Other expenses - net (3,653) = (3,653)
EBITDA 681,866 507,581 1,189,447
Depreciation and amortization (199,110)
Interest expense (79,082)
Provision for income tax (277,742)
Consolidated net income P681,866 P507,581 B633,513

31.

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

In 2011, the Company’s noncash financing activity pertains to the acquisition of land on
installment basis. Installment payable amounted to B3.0 billion as of December 31, 2011

(see Note 15).

32.

Comparative Information

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, certain reclassification and offsetting of balances in the
consolidated statements of financial position were made to enhance inter-period comparability.

Details are summarized in the table below:

December 31, January 1,
2010 2010
Recilassification of “Deposits from pre-selling of
condominium units” account from noncurrent }iabilities
to current liabilities £740,991 B343,196
Offsetting of output VAT (presented under “Trade and other
payables” account) against input VAT (presented under
“Other current assets” account) 40,989 33,174

The amounts presented as of January 1, 2010 are the same restated amounts as of December 31,

2009.
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CONGLOMERATE MAP OF ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

For the years ended December 31
{in thousand pesos)

ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION

Rockwell Information Center, Rockwell Center Makati City

Retained earnings, beginning

Less: Accumulated share in net losses of joint venture as of end of previous year

Cumulative dividends on preferred shares as of end of previous year

Net income actually earned for the year
Net income during the year closed to retained earnings
Less: share in net loss {net income) of joint venture

Less: Cumulative dividends on preferred shares

Retained earnings avaitable for dividend declaration to common shareholders as of
December 31

Php1,963,783

2010

Php1,162,476

38,802 37,865
(2,338) (688)
36,465 37,178
913,465 801,307
(79,861) 937
833,604 802,244
{1,650) (1,650)
Php2,832,202 Php2,000,248
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Rockwell Land Corporation

1011 J. P. Rizal Street

Makati City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rockwell Land Corporation
and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31,
2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the three years ended December 31,
2011, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. .
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April 25, 2012

Mr. Nestor J. Padilla
Rockwell Land Corporation
1011 J. P. Rizal Street
Makati City

Dear Mr. Padilla,

We understand that we are requested by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) to
respond to one of their comments in their letter dated April 12, 2012, related to the audited
financial statements of Rockwell Land Corporation (the Company) that was included in the
Company'’s application for registration and listing by way of introduction of 6,228,382,344
common shares.

We present below our response:

SEC Comment: Note 9 indicates Rockwell Leisure Club, Inc. and Manila Polo Club as
“Available-for-sale quoted equity shares”. It states that the fair value of said
securities is determined by reference to published price quotations in an active
market. However, said securities are not traded in an established exchange which
could qualify the market as “active” (PAS 39).

As disclosed under Note 28, Financial Instruments, of the audited financial statements, the
fair value of the available-for-sale investments is determined by reference to market bid
quotes as of financial reporting date. In accordance with AG 71 of PAS 39, a financial
instrument is regarded as quoted in an “active” market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The fair values of these shares were based on
published two-way quotes of brokers. On such basis, we concur that the disclosure made in
the audited financial statements as stated above is appropriate and meets the definition and
requirements of the related accounting standard.

We hope that the above meets your requirement.

Very truly yours,

Ao, Woraw d. ,&7

MARIA VIVIAN C. RUIZ
Partner

A member firm of Emst & Young Giobal Limited





